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CORPORATE INFORMATION
K@

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
Mr. Ho Yau Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ng Suet Yi

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 3808, 38th Floor

West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
Reed Smith Richards Butler

Annual Report 2019 F&

FHELEEEEERLA

HITES
BERBEE(ER)
WL (FEE)
ERM LT (gER)
EXEL L
FRiE S £
RIEX R E

BYFHITES
REM%EE
AR 5
fa] & BA 52 4

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

MREERTEEXME

B
F#EH168-2005%
EEPLAR
381£3808F

FEARBRIT

BITIRTT (FB) BRAF]
ERBT(FE)ARLQA

BERTERAF
RERTERAF]

HEEER

REEAREETT



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
234

WEBSITE
http://www.ncgrp.com.hk

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATEH
B

KGR EE PR
TERGBFERE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

ERERNEBFELTIE

SEZERERA A
B
ERANERI1835
&R 05418

R 4D X 5%
234
48 1t

http://www.ncgrp.com.hk

Annual Report 2019 E£#§



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B E R 2 A

GROUP STRUCTURE
e BT
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(the “Company”)
MtLEEEEBRRA A
(ra~2% 1)
and
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its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHES

Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (“New
Century” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019
(the "Year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

Global economy remains cloudy with ongoing uncertainties
regarding the United States and China trade tensions, the next
interest rate move, as well as the Britain's exit from the
European Union. Among which, the rise of trade protectionism
has undermined investors’ confidence and triggers turbulence
in global financial markets. Hong Kong is one of the core
markets adversely affected by such huge volatilities.
Meanwhile, the market sentiment continues to deteriorate
recently amid fears over social stability sparked by the
controversial extradition bill amendment in Hong Kong.
Though local property market is yet to experience significant
impact, the Group is still facing an extremely difficult period
and is, from time to time, reviewing its business model and
strategy with cautious, in order to secure our revenue as well

as to capture opportunities from the volatile market.

The Group's revenue decreased year-on-year by 50.6% to
HK$99,754,000. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
dropped year-on-year by 87.3% to HK$18,889,000. Earnings

per share came to HK0.33 cents for the Year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

The charter services of our three cruise ships namely as

noou

“Amusement World", “Leisure World” and “Aegean Paradise”
recorded revenue of HK$79,011,000 for the Year. During the
Year, Amusement World ceased operations from 2 July 2018,
and was subsequently disposed by the Group on 31 August
2018. The Group also entered into new two-year term charter
agreements with lower daily charter fees for Leisure World and
Aegean Paradise, resulting in a drop in segment profit during

the Year.

Income from investment properties was HK$20,256,000.
Rental income from Singapore properties recorded a slight
increase due to an improvement in occupancy rates. However,
rental income from Hong Kong properties fell due to a change
of its usage for part of the office units at Shun Tak Centre
from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
following the expiration of the relevant tenancy agreement on
30 April 2018. Overall investment properties in both Hong
Kong and Singapore achieved excellent occupancy rates of

100% with an average annual rental yield of 3.20%.

Given the volatility in global financial and stock markets, the
Group has reduced securities trading operations since the
second half of 2017, which led to a revenue plunge in
securities trading segment but exchanged for a stronger
financial position, during the Year. The Group will closely
monitor capital markets and adjust its securities portfolio in a

prudent manner in order to maximise returns.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHRES
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHES

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the growth momentum of global economy is
expected to slow down with intensified trade protectionism,
escalated the United States and China trade tension and
frequent financial market fluctuation. The Group will promptly
and flexibly respond to the ever-changing market landscape by
taking a prudent approach. The Group will leverage its years of
experience and expertise to strengthen the management,
budget control and business structures, so as to maximize
synergies among different business segments and enhance
brand image. The Group will also proactively look for
expansion opportunity in order to create substantial returns for

shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, investors, business partners and
clients for their continuous trust and support to the Group. |
would also like to thank all staff for their contribution and

dedication in the past year.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$99,754,000

and profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$18,889,000 compared to revenue and profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$202,055,000 and
HK$148,611,000 last year, representing a decrease of 50.6%
and 87.3%, respectively. Earnings per share came to HK0.33
cents (2018: HK2.57 cents).

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased 50.6% vyear-on-year to
HK$99,754,000 for the Year, (2018: HK$202,055,000). The
fall was mainly attributable to (i) net realized and unrealized
losses of HK$6,450,000 on equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss (2018: net realized and unrealized gains
of HK$63,015,000); and (ii) a decrease in charter service
income from HK$106,390,000 last year to HK$79,011,000
this year.

Cost of services provided

Cost of services provided, which was cruise ship depreciation,
amounted to HK$20,303,000 for the Year, recording a
decrease of 18.6% compared to HK$24,951,000 last year.
This was due to the disposal on 31 August 2018, of an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which
held 100% beneficial ownership in the cruise ship -

Amusement World.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains totalled HK$12,399,000 for the Year,
representing an increase of 270.0% compared to
HK$3,351,000 last year. This was mainly due to an increase

in bank interest income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRE ST

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were HK$37,218,000 for the Year, up
43.7% compared with HK$25,904,000 last year. This rise was
mainly attributable to (i) maintenance expenses incurred for
the cruise ship — Amusement World during cessation of
operations between 2 July 2018 and 31 August 2018; and
(i) an increase in depreciation due to a change of its usage
for part of office units at Shun Tak Centre from investment
properties to owner-occupied properties following the
expiration of the relevant tenancy agreement on 30 April
2018.

Foreign exchange differences

The group recorded foreign exchange losses of
HK$10,990,000 this year (2018: foreign exchange gains of
HK$9,237,000). The foreign exchange losses were mainly the
result of a depreciation of the Singapore dollar against the

Hong Kong dollar.

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of cruise ships

At the end of the reporting date, the cruise ships were
measured at fair value with the revaluation surplus of
HK$2,672,000 (2018: deficit of HK$78,000) recognised in

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the Year.

Fair value gains on investment properties

Fair value gains on investment properties amounted to
HK$7,554,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of 78.8%
compared to HK$35,634,000 last year, which was primarily
due to the decrease in fair value gains on investment
properties resulted from change of its usage for part of the
office units at Shun Tak Centre from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties following the expiration of the

relevant tenancy agreement on 30 April 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gains on the disposal of a subsidiary

The gains on disposal of a subsidiary reached HK$3,652,000,
resulting from the disposal on 31 August 2018, of an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which held
100% beneficial ownership in the cruise ship — Amusement
World.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense climbed 660.1% to HK$16,016,000
for the Year, compared to HK$2,107,000 last year. This was
mainly attributable to an increase in deferred tax expenses,
which were the result of the change of its usage for part of
the office units at Shun Tak Centre from investment properties

to owner-occupied properties.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company totalled
HK$18,889,000 for the Year, which recorded a decrease of
87.3% compared to HK$148,611,000 last year. This was
primarily due to (i) a decrease in revenue; (i) an increase in
administrative expenses; (iii) foreign exchange losses for the
Year compared to foreign exchange gains last year; (iv) a
decrease in fair value gains on investment properties; and (v)

an increase in income tax expense.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a final dividend of HKO.3 cents per
share, payable to shareholders of the Company whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on 2
October 2019. Subject to the approval of the Company's
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 24 September 2019, the final dividend will be paid
on 22 October 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRE ST

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Tuesday, 24 September 2019 (the “Annual General
Meeting”). For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 19 September 2019
to Tuesday, 24 September 2019, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18
September 2019.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The
record date for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is
on Wednesday, 2 October 2019. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed on Wednesday, 2
October 2019 and no transfer of shares will be effected on
such date. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration

not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 30 September 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW
Cruise Ship Charter Services

The charter services of our three cruise ships namely as

noou

“Amusement World", “Leisure World” and "Aegean Paradise”
recorded revenue of HK$79,011,000 (2018:
HK$106,390,000). During the Year, Amusement World ceased
operations on 2 July 2018 following the termination of its
charter agreement with the charterer. On 31 August 2018, the
Group disposed all of its interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, which held 100% beneficial ownership in
Amusement World, to an independent third party and
recorded a gain on disposal of HK$3,652,000. The Group
entered into new two-year term charter agreements for Leisure
World and Aegean Paradise on 14 June 2018, with the
existing charterer. Starting from 1 July 2018, the respective
daily charter fees for Leisure World and Aegean Paradise
under the new charter agreements amounted to S$13,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$81,144) and S$23,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$139,944), which were lower
than the previous respective daily charter fees of S$19,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$116,424) and S$28,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$164,640). Along with that (i)
during the cessation period of operations from 2 July 2018 to
31 August 2018, maintenance expenses of HK$5,486,000
(2018: Nil) were incurred for Amusement World; (ii) foreign
exchange losses of HK$3,329,000 were incurred for the Year
due to the depreciation of the Singapore dollar against the
Hong Kong dollar (2018: foreign exchange gains of
HK$2,802,000); and (iii) surplus on revaluation of cruise
ships of HK$2,672,000 recorded for the Year (2018: deficit of
HK$78,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the Group recorded a decrease of 39.0% in segment profit to
HK$51,293,000 for the Year (2018: HK$84,129,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRE ST

Property Investments

The Group's property investment income decreased to
HK$20,256,000 (2018: HK$21,635,000). The change of its
usage for part of the office units at Shun Tak Centre from
investment properties to owner-occupied properties following
the expiration of the relevant tenancy agreement on 30 April
2018 led to rental income from Hong Kong investment
properties decreasing to HK$18,441,000 (2018:
HK$19,927,000). An improvement in the occupancy rate
drove a rise in rental income from investment properties in
Singapore to HK$1,815,000 (2018: HK$1,708,000).
Investment properties achieved an excellent occupancy rate of
100% (2018: 99%), in general with an average annual rental
yield of 3.2% (2018: 3.2%). For the Year, net fair value gains
of investment properties amounted to HK$7,554,000 (2018:
HK$35,634,000). Hong Kong investment properties recorded
fair value gains of HK$6,400,000 (2018: HK$33,900,000)
while Singapore investment properties recorded fair value
gains of HK$1,154,000 (2018: HK$1,734,000). As a result,
profit from the property investments segment decreased by
53.7% to HK$24,237,000 for the Year (2018:
HK$52,366,000).

Securities Trading

The Group's securities portfolio is mainly comprised of blue
chips in the Hong Kong and Singapore stock markets. During
the Year, revenue from securities trading amounted to
HK$487,000 (2018: HK$74,030,000). This revenue
represented net realized and unrealized losses of
HK$6,450,000 (2018: net realized and unrealized gains of
HK$63,015,000) on equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, dividend income from equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$3,753,000 (2018:
HK$13,519,000), and fair value gains on derivative financial
instruments of HK$3,184,000 (2018: fair value losses of
HK$2,504,000). Ultimately, the Group recorded a segment
loss of HK$3,379,000 (2018: a profit of HK$77,157,000).
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RZZT—hE=A=1+—8 ' AEBZEAQ
TEEFAEBENRERERLRE AR
27,984,000/ 7T - AKEW Ei5E EEBEHE
BAEEEEFESONERRERE -

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to HK$27,984,000.
There were no individual equity investments held by the

Group for which the value was more than 5% of the net

assets of the Group.

Percentage

Name of stock listed Number of Percentage of to net assets
on the stock exchange shares shareholding Investment Market value of the
of Hong Kong held as at held as at cost as at value as at Group as at
(Stock Code) 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019

RZZ-h% RZZ-h#F RZZ-hEF
REBBR MR =ZA=t-H =ZA=t-H R=ZF-h%& R-B-Nn% =R=t-H
rhzRGER BRERS BERG ZA=t+-8 ZR=t-8H EAKEEE
(R4 E5R) ZH8B ZHEAK ZRERK ZHhE BEZzEOL

HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited 20,000 0.0005 1,781 1,649 0.10
RINTEXBERAA
(0001)
The Hong Kong and China Gas 200,000 0.0013 2,648 3,764 0.22
Company Limited
BETERRABRDA
(0003)
Henderson Land Development 40,000 0.0009 1,738 1,996 0.12
Company Limited

BEKFHERGRAA
(0012)
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited 20,000 0.0007 2,509 2,694 0.16
MEENERRAR A
(0016)
Hong Kong Exchanges and 2,000 0.0002 528 547 0.03

Clearing Limited
ERRGRBEEMBERRF
(0388)
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TR E RS

Name of stock listed Number of Percentage of

on the stock exchange shares shareholding

of Hong Kong held as at held as at

(Stock Code) 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
R=ZZ-h% RZZ-h#F

REBBRAR =A=t+-H =ZA=t+-H

tHzRBER BERG BERSG

(RBRH®) ZH¥E ZHAK

China Construction Bank Corporation 1,000,000 0.0004

PEERRITROBERADA

(0939)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company 40,000 0.0005

of China, Ltd.

RETRZRRE (RE) RIPARATF

(2318)

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 120,000 0.0039

REES®

(2800)

Bank of China Limited 1,000,000 0.0012

FERTRNER DA
(3988)

FHELEEEEERLA

Percentage

to net assets

Total for equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
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EAFEETARRORERESH

Investment Market value of the

cost as at value as at Group as at

31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019

RZE-h&

RZE-h& R-E-NE§ =H=+-H

=B=+-H =R=1+-H HEEEEE

ZERERK ZThiE FHEZEIN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET TET

7,101 6,730 0.39

2,692 3516 0.21

3,385 3,528 021

3,991 3,560 0.21

26,373 27,984 1.65
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Information on the performance of the Group's equity
investments for the year ended 31 March 2019 is listed

below:

Stocks listed on the stock exchange of Hong Kong

REBEBB R EH 2B

Stocks listed on the stock exchange of Singapore

REIREFEHRZZ LT 2k

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$190,000,000 (2018: HK$216,910,000)
given to banks to secure general credit facilities for certain
subsidiaries. No credit facilities (2018: HK$22,740,000) were
utilized by the subsidiaries from such guarantees at the end of

the reporting period.

AEECBRERERBEEZE-_FT—NLF=A
=ST-BLEFEZRENEHHIWT :

Net realized

and unrealized fair

value losses for
the year ended
31 March 2019

Dividend
income for

the year ended
31 March 2019

BE
—E-NF Bz
=HA=+—8 —E-hE
LtFEEZEER =A=+-—H
EARBHRAF FEFEEZ
EBEEFERE BREWA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T
(5,918) 2,514
(532) 1,239
Total (6,450) 3,753
A&t
FIREE

RZZT—AE=R=1+—8 ' ARQBKTE
T2 R{EEEREEA190,000,000% T (=ZF
—/\% :216,910,00087t) ' tER®E TH B
AEE—REERECER -REEH
ZEMBARLESREM(ZT—N
B &) F22,740,0008 L) ZfE ERME N
FEREE

N
BN
=i
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2019, some of the Group's land and building

as well as investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$471,127,000 (2018: HK$474,533,000), plus
some of the Group's trade receivables (rental) with a carrying
amount of HK$822,000 (2018: HK$78,000), and the Group's
equity investments with a carrying amount of HK$27,984,000
(2018: HK$139,154,000) were pledged to banks and
securities dealers for loan facilities worth HK$187,739,000
(2018: HK$265,414,000) that were granted to the Group. As
at 31 March 2019, no loan facilities (2018: HK$23,437,000)

were utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current assets of
HK$793,565,000 (2018: HK$945,361,000) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company worth
HK$1,653,099,000 (2018: HK$1,636,670,000).

As at 31 March 2019, no loans (2018: HK$23,437,000) were

borrowed from banks or securities dealers.

As at 31 March 2019, there was a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary of
HK$131,823,000 (2018: HK$171,823,000). The loan was
denominated in United States dollar, which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. It was classified as a
current liability. In the prior year, there was no intention for
the non-controlling shareholders to demand that the subsidiary
of the Group repay this loan in the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the loan was

classified as a non-current liability as at 31 March 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's gearing ratio, calculated as
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company, was 0.08 (2018: 0.12). Total indebtedness
represents interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and a
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the

Group's subsidiary.

EXPOSURE TO EQUITY PRICES, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group is exposed to risks arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity investments. The
Group’s equity investments of HK$27,984,000 (2018:
HK$139,154,000) are listed on the stock exchange of Hong
Kong (2018: the stock exchanges of Hong Kong and
Singapore), and are valued at quoted market prices at the end

of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
of HK$855,173,000 (2018: HK$793,767,000) were held
predominately in Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar and
United States dollar. A loan of HK$131,823,000 (2018:
HK$171,823,000) advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of Group's subsidiary was denominated in United
States dollar and charged at an interest-free rate. In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has no significant interest
rate risks. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 23 staff in

Hong Kong. Remuneration packages for employees and
directors are structured according to market standards as well
as individual performance and experience. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include a mandatory provident fund
scheme, medical insurance, share option scheme and
discretionary bonuses. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had
386,640,000 outstanding share options granted to eligible

directors and employees of the Group.

DISPOSAL OF JACKSTON MARITIME LIMITED

(*JIML")

On 31 August 2018, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company as vendor entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party as purchaser,
pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital (the “Sale
Shares”) of JML and the shareholder's loan (the
“Shareholder’s Loan") owed by JML to the vendor at a
consideration of US$2,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,160,000). JML was indirectly owned as to 60% by the
Company. JML was principally engaged in cruise ship
investment and the principal asset of which was the cruise
ship — Amusement World. A gain on the disposal of a
subsidiary of HK$3,652,000 was recorded by the Group. The
disposal of the Sale Shares and the Shareholder's Loan
constituted a disclosable transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and was therefore subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under the Listing Rules. For
details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated
31 August 2018.

Upon the disposal on 31 August 2018, the Group ceased to

have any equity interest in JML on the same date.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In view of strong and sustainable borrowers’ demand in more
flexible property mortgage loans from licensed money lender
in Hong Kong which are not subject to various round of
prudential measures and regulations governed by The Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, as well as its positive business
opportunity and potentials, on 18 June 2019, the Group,
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a conditional agreement (the "Agreement”) with three
connected persons of the Company to acquire in aggregate of
60% equity interest in ETC Finance Limited (“ETC") at the
initial consideration (subject to adjustment) of
HK$457,640,000 (the “Acquisition”). ETC is a licensed money
lender in Hong Kong with a total loan portfolio of
approximately HK$793,417,000 comprising property mortgage
loans and personal loans as at 31 March 2019. An initial
refundable deposit of HK$30,000,000 was paid by the Group

upon signing of the Agreement.

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the
Company. By reason of the vendors' interest in ETC and the
Company, the vendors are regarded as connected persons of
the Company and the Acquisition also constitutes a connected
transaction. The Acquisition is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. A
special general meeting of the Company will be convened and
held for the independent shareholders to approve the
Agreement and the transactions as contemplated thereunder.
For details, please refer to the Company's announcement
dated 18 June 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) is committed
to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of
its shareholders and to enhance the performance of the

Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
Mr. Ho Yau Ming
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed "Directors’ Biographies” on pages 51 to 56 of this
annual report. In compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the
CG Code, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance

cover in respect of potential legal actions against its directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
seminars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
and the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2
March 2012, Mr. Wilson Ng resigned as the Chairman of the
Company on 2 March 2012 and on the same day Mr. Ng Wee
Keat was re-designated from the Chief Executive Officer to the
Chairman of the Company. The Company is in the process of
identifying suitable candidate with appropriate experience to
be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and will make
an announcement as soon as a suitable candidate has been
identified.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law 87
of the Company where provides that at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
members, including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan
Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Cheung Chun
Kwok is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

4. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

5. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

6. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

7. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of

executive directors.

Details of the directors’ and five highest paid employees’

emoluments are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Wee Keat
and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Ng Wee Keat is the

chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and

succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the

retiring directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Company's business.

Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate for directorships:

1. character and integrity;

2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the

Company's business and corporate strategy;

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and

significant commitments;

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules; and
5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives

adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Selection Criteria (continued)

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.

Nomination Procedure

1. The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board

members.

2. For filing a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Procedure (continued)

3.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.

Review and Disclosure of the Nomination Policy

1.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,

as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan
Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’'s

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

4. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

5.

to review the Company's financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management

letter.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2018 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committee and the annual general

meeting during the Year is set out below:

Directors Board
= S
Executive Directors HTEE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BREGLE 10/12
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BHBELL 12/12
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EFHLL 10/12
Ms. Lilian Ng BRENT 12/12
Ms. Chen Ka Chee mRETL 11/12
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENEE 12/12

Independent Non-executive Directors BV EHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok REBLAE 12/12
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BREEE 11/12
Mr. Ho Yau Ming fRALE 12/12

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held

g/ BrEERY
Annual
Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee ~ Committee Meeting
RREF
FHZEES REZEE EBHZES V-1
2/2 0/1 - 1/1
- - - 0/1
- - - 1/1
- - - 0/1
- - - 1/1
22 1/1 - 1/1
2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
2/2 0/1 1/2 1/1
2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-audit

services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,500,000
Non-audit services

Interim review 360,000
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2019.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 67 to 75 of this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The management of the Company has established internal
audit function. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and considered that they are

adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Vi, is

responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the Year, Ms. Ng has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

The Company's corporate website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)
provides postal address, email address, fax number and
telephone number by which shareholders of the Company may
at any time address their concerns or enquires to the Board.

Annual Report 2019 F&

FHELEEEEERLA

Bk EERAIREE (&)

EXSEHBEEEARANERE R KA
EERG - ARENEAREENMABEER
SmEeETRS (FERNEREMAEEN
EETH BRMBEE - EFEERAR
B UYRRZEEAREAULREA - &
EENCREARRESE - REBEZ MM
BERBEITEHNER BEIBEERKER
URBTHEXZNEIREREBERERES
B ARBERH

AR
ARBZAPMER/RREB/L L HAER
E=ZeRHCXEAFENTHEER - RAF
BEA RZTBEEITDRISNEZBRE
ESEE

i SR A

BRERREHNARE
RIBFARRZARMAANFESG - FE2EK
EARKENIR T Z—HWAREHERA
(M BZBEAMEERRAEG ERIRNER)
MR EAREHEREBRAAARES
EEIMNEBRHERMEL  BEREFTSAMAMK
RERAE  AEREABERPEANEM
B BZASANEEZBERKERNOME
ARBT - HEZTSHEREZ AMET —+—
BR - REARZEE  ME2EKALH
BITREBRRECBIFRRE)ET4(3)E

=LEER

mEESERHER

N R) 2 A R} A8k (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk) i2
HARRRFAIERAEESREEBEISE
BRERZEBEFHIE - BB FERHR
E AL



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the Corporate Governance section of the

Company's corporate website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(2)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to
propose resolution(s) at the next annual general

meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as they appear in the Company's

share register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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EREGRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its
shareholders through interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. All such reports,
announcements and circulars can also be accessed via the
Company's website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk) and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(iii) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no change
in the Company's constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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FHELEEEEERLA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREEGRE

INTRODUCTION

This report provides an update of the environmental, social

and governance (“ESG") of the Group during the year ended

31 March 2019 and is prepared in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
cruise ship charter services, property investments and
securities trading. The operations of the Group do not
involve any production process, hence there is no
obvious exhaust emissions. Greenhouse gas emissions
from the Group are associated with electricity, company

vehicles and air travel.

The following table sets out the emissions of carbon
dioxide from electricity, company vehicles and air travel

during the Year.

i[[3

5l
AHEEREGHRASENRE %iﬁ&%f/ﬁ
(MRE - -HEREARDRBE_FT-NF=
A=Z+—-BLEFENEHRER /H\Eﬁéffi
TMRAUME -+ EZ2CGRRE - HEREAR
EECEIDAIE k-

A IRIE

Al. HEBY
AEBFENERERRAERYS -0
¥RERBLHEE - AEBIRELER
WA RATA A EBIR - B LI AT
PREERE RN - A 7R = REEHE W
THEES  AREHEMEERER -

TRIMAEEREES  RAIEH R
iz = iR e — E iR BERR -

Total volume emitted Intensity of emission

CO: emissions CO: emissions

BERE EREE

BB —E BN

Electricity EW) 144.80 tonnes 0.13 tonnes (per square meter
144.80MF of floor area)

0.13M8 (B S KIZEETE)

Company vehicles UNGIER 9.44 tonnes 3.15 tonnes (per vehicle)
9.44MF 3150 (B8 )TE)

Air travel fi 2= Z ik 18.83 tonnes 2.69 tonnes (per traveller)
18.83 0 2,69 (BRIKE)

To reduce the impact from indirect greenhouse gas
emissions, telephone conference is encouraged to avoid

unnecessary business travels.
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FHLEEFTEERQA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

The small amount of hazardous waste generated from
the Company’s office activities, such as toner cartridges,
is collected by qualified organizations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 2.37 tonnes which are collected
by specialized recycling company on a regular basis for

effective recycling.

Due to the Company's business nature, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

Use of Resources

Electricity consumption

The total electricity consumption of the Group came
directly from the lightings, air-conditioners, computers
and other office equipment. During the Year, electricity
consumption by the Group was 259,439 kWh which was
approximately 235.62 kWh per square meter of floor
area. The Group advocates employees to switch off idle
lightings, computers, office equipment and air-
conditioning systems when they are not in use. In
addition, the Group has adopted energy saving practices

in its office building.

Fuel consumption

The Group owns three vehicles for business uses. Fuel
consumption by the company vehicles during the Year
was 4,085 litres of petrol which was approximately 1,362
litres per vehicle. Regular maintenance on the Group's
vehicles is carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to

reduce emissions.

Al.

A2.

RR - HEREGRE
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BEREAR

AEBzAREEEERARH =
A EBRREMBAREE  RAFE
N AEBZHEEER259,439TF R
- HERES A KEmEEL235.62
TR -AEEREEEETVEREH
EFEHERRA B ROAERERTEH
R boh AREBEEERARER

RFETBEFEIE ©

AEEBRBE=ZWIEEEXBRE - KA
FENRN - RAIEEWAOREDHE S /54,085
FAh  HERE®WELNR362H ¢
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FHELEEEEERLA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREEGRE

A2.

A3.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Water consumption

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Water saving notices
were posted in pantry to promote water conservation and
usage awareness. Since the main source of waste water
came from domestic use, the overall level of water

pollution was relatively low.

Paper consumption

The Group consumed 0.62 tonnes of papers during the
Year which was approximately 0.03 tonnes per employee.
In addition, the Company also introduced electronic
means of corporate communications to shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to receive corporate
communication documents by using electronic means
through the Company's website so as to reduce the

paper consumption.

The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer, does
not consume any packaging materials in its principal

business.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to building a sustainable
corporate culture and a green office environment by
saving energy and reducing waste. The concept of

noou noou

“Reduce”, “Reuse”, “Recycle” and “Replace” are strongly
promoted within the Group. By all means, the Group is
striving to protect the environment as a corporate social

responsibility.
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FHLEEFTEERQA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

The Environmental and Natural Resources
(continued)

In order to reduce ecological footprint, employees are
encouraged to make double-sided printing and copying,
and reuse items like envelopes. Recycling bins are set up
in the office to promote recycling and reusing paper. The
use of digital copies is promoted in the office to save
papers and to recycle envelopes that are used for issuing
internal documents and letters. The Group also uses
durable items instead of one-off disposable items by

replacing paper cups with mugs/glasses.

SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have

been clearly stated in the employee handbook.

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of
each employee will be determined with reference to a
number of factors including educational background,
experience, job duties, professional skills and technical
capabilities, as well as salary level for similar job positions
in the industry. An employee may be dismissed in case
of serious or persistent beaches of discipline or convicted

of a criminal offence.
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B2.

EiaRE

SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of our employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal
opportunity for promotion.

Working hours, benefits and welfare

The Group determines working hours and rest period for
employees in line with Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong and employment contracts with employees. In
addition to statutory holidays, employees are also entitled
to other holidays including paid annual leave, sick leave,
marriage and compassionate leave, maternity leave,

paternity leave and compensation leave.

Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance,
group life insurance and discretionary bonuses. Eligible
employees are rewarded through the Group’s share
option schemes and have the opportunity to acquire

shares of the Company through these schemes.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual work
stations. Office are properly lit and ventilated, kept
clean and tidy with ample space between work
stations;
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FHLEEFTEERQA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

«  Office furniture and fittings are well maintained and
replaced where necessary;

«  Smoking in workplace is strictly prohibited;

«  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection
treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;

«  Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to
remove air-suspended dust and odour; and

«  Security measures are in place at our offices to
restrict entry and exit only to staff and permitted

visitors.

During the Year, there have been no work-related injuries

or fatalities.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing

their jobs effectively and efficiently.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
prohibits the employment of child and forced labour.
During the Year, all the Group’s employees are aged over
18 and no child labour has been employed. The Group
strives to create an environment of respect, integrity and

fairness for its employees.
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B5.

B6.

EiaRE

SOCIAL (continued)
Supply Chain Management

As for the property investments and cruise ship charter
services, the Group has been providing quality services to
the customers, namely tenants and charterers, to
maintain long-term business relationships. We encourage

our tenants to minimize their resources consumption.

Regarding the cruise ship charter services, the Group
required the charterers to use fuel and lubrication oil to
the vessels to enable the main propulsion and auxiliary

engines to operate efficiently and without harmful effect.

The Group developed good relationships with its business
partners to achieve long-term goals. The management
maintained close communications and shared business
updates with them when appropriate. Meanwhile, we
continue to seek and gain support from our business
partners to cultivate safe working conditions and to
promote responsible environmental practices. During the
Year, there was no material and significant dispute

between the Group and its business partners.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided in our business, and to maintain

effective communication channels for redress.

During the Year, there was no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.
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FHLEEFTEERQA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partners of the Company.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, staff should
report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering has been recorded in the
Year under review.

Community Investment

The Group believes that community support is important
to the Group's success. The Group also encourages the
employees to actively participate in volunteering activities
in social services. During the Year, some employees
participated in free meal-boxes distribution activities to
the sick, the old and the needy in the old areas as
supported by a charitable organization and totally 159
volunteer hours were spent accordingly for the Year. We
will continue to maximize our social investments as
possible in order to create a more favorable environment
for our community and our businesses.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise the provision of cruise ship charter
services, property investments and securities trading. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 76 to 228.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKO.3 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to

shareholders on the register of members on 2 October 2019.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 229
and 230. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

Annual Report 2019 F&

FHELEEEEERLA

ARABER((EF)EMRE2ZHEEZ-_F—A
FZAZT - HLEFEZETERERLEE
TR B HEK -

ITEXRBREBER
ARRZEBEBOERERBRRESE
H-EMBARAZEIEXEHAARKBSHE
ERY DWERERBHER -RAFE
A ARBZEEEBUETREFMEAS
& o

HBERRKRE
AEBHE-_ZT—NF-_A=+—HLEFE
Zim A R ANEB R Z B 2 BTk R SR B 7S
WKRETEE228H o

fog

EFFZzR_T-NFT+A_BHRIBERE
EﬁZ%?ﬁH$¢EX%&Et%%@H
0.3l -

>

MBEARBEE
B ERERYBREK  LEEREEN
EM DB ARESROAEMBRFREZE T

BEENEE BENREERESZBEZFRN
F229K2308 o i E W K K E A B
Bmzk 2 — 510 -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

and share options during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$744,954,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2019 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2019 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 91% of the Group's
total revenue, which included fair value losses on securities in
aggregate of HK$6,450,000 for the year. The aggregate
revenue attributable to the largest customer accounted for

75% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five

largest customers mentioned above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan and Ms. Lilian Ng will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received from each of the three current
independent non-executive directors (namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming)
an annual confirmation of independence and as at the date of

this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 42. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng also
holds directorship in various members of the Group since
January 2003. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Mr. Ng is a
director of Huang Worldwide Holding Limited (“HWHL"),
the immediate holding company of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited ("NCIPL"), which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Mr.
Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is a younger brother of
Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda. Mr. Ng is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They
are all executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a
son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor
and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the
entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 52. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 24 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investments, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 41. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng brings to the Group
experience in the fields of real estate management,
human resource management and retail operations. Ms.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Telecommunications and a minor in Computer Science
from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Ms.
Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Ms. Ng is also a cousin
of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive directors of
the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng (also known as Ms. Huang Lilian)

Aged 45. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng graduated from San Francisco State University
with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration. Ms.
Ng has extensive experience in hotel management. Ms.
Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the elder sister of
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Ng is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 54. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
director in May 2000. Ms. Chen also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since August 2000. Ms.
Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 31 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms.
Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng. They are all
executive directors of the Company. Ms. Chen is a niece
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and
the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the entire
interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Ms. Chen did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 54. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu also holds directorship
in various members of the Group since September 1997.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 34
years of experience in the accounting field, including 3
years in external audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr.
Yu has over 26 years of financial experience in
companies listed in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Yu did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 54. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EEEHE(E)

(b) BYFHITES (&)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 72. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 38
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members

of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 68. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Further details can be found in note 8 to the financial

statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2019, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the directors

of the Company to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company's

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FHELEEEEERLA

EERBEETRAERKROREH
R zEBRAR

R-B-NF=ZA=1t—HB ARAEEK
RETBRABRARRHEEMBEER (F
ERBLSLBEG (EHEBEERG])
EXVER) 2Bt RARER D HEERIEEF
KB HHIEIS2ELRARBAERRFREZ
BfftAzEm AR HRBEESTHZ
REMAMGARRA MBS MRE
m

RARAEBRZHR

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BRELERYE - SHORESEUE

Directly Through

beneficially controlled

Directors owned corporation

BEs ERBERESR ZEHDHE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat - 308,992,000

BEGERE (note 2)

(H&E2)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 308,992,000

mERM T (note 2)

(i 7E2)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 308,992,000

ERBERT (note 2)

(P 7E2)

Ms. Lilian Ng = 308,992,000

ERIEL L (note 2)

(P &E2)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 -
REB#HzL

Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 -
REXEE
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Beneficiary issued share
of a trust Total capital
RN BT
ERZERA &t BRAZE DL
3,556,133,691 3,865,125,691 66.87
(note 3)
(F&E3)
3,556,133,691 3,917,125,691 67.77
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,556,133,691 3,865,125,691 66.87
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,556,133,691 3,865,125,691 66.87
(note 3)
(Pt5E3)
~ 8,400,000 0.15
= 3,360,000 0.06
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND EENBETHAERRGOKRERE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING B zEBZIERE (8)
SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company: RARRIBREZ R :

Number of share options

Directors directly beneficially owned
= EEEREE2EREHE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat =EELEE 66,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BRI T 56,000,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EEMZ T 53,000,000
Ms. Lilian Ng mAER L 53,000,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR A& B 22 & 41,000,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXKE 44,000,000
313,000,000
Notes: B sE -
1. As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued shares of the . RZZE—AE=ZR=+—H KRQARZE*
Company was 5,780,368,705. 1T 48 81 55,780,368, 7050% °

2. 308,992,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's) 2. 308,992,000 @Bt (ER) BEH
S

Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a SERAAFE  ZAAA—RERBRA
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee A WEA—RAKEBSHE =@ LE -
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian BEHBELZL EPHATIAENEZLAZ
Ng are members and members of its council of management. RAZHEREREZEGKE -

3. 3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment 3. 3,556,133,6910% & 5 ANew Century

Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI) Investment Pacific Limited® % -+ 3 ©iHuang
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Group (BVI) Limited:& 8 & ErE R ALHEH ©
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are ZETRETEZREZEANBEEERERE
the discretionary beneficiaries. BENLL EFEELIREMNELL -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2019, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERBEETRAERKROREH
Rz Ezm R AR (&)

BREXFHBEREEIN R_FT—-NLEFE=H
=t—H ARAEFEERTRAEHRE
AN A R 3 EL T fa] AR B R 18] 2 B 7 SR AR R X
MR EERERES LMEERAIEI525BE
FEZERmIORA - RIRBRET R Z R EM
ARG ARRNA RIS HIAR

FERRRHEMATRARG REHE
Rz zEERAR

RARBEMESEHAA R_T—NF=A
=t—H BREXAERBEARREZZ#R
SN AE AR E B 1T IRAS%E A £ 2 T
s HRIE B 5 R I B 1R B B 3361% 5 E &2
AR DR BRFZ Em B

RARBEBRZHFR

Shareholders

IRE=R

New Century Investment Pacific Limited
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited
Huang Group (BVI) Limited

Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
=IRBEE

New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited

FE (ER)BEESERAT
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2,3
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Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company'’s issued
shares held share capital
EERLARE BT

FEEBERHE REZBD L
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
4,249,425,691 73.51
308,992,000 B2,



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of
New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 308,992,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 384,300,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,249,425,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

FHLEEFTEERQA

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

FERRERHEMATRARG REEHE
R zEERRXE (&)

B &E -

B EXFTHREE I

R-ZTE—hF=ZA=+—8 ARFZE%
TR 4 8 55,780,368, 705 % ©

Huang Group (BVI) Limited&New Century
Investment Pacific LimitedZ S #ERR A ] o
Huang Worldwide Holding LimitedZNew
Century Investment Pacific Limited,z B & #%&
fig A 7] o Bt - Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited#%43 & &
& #£3,556,133,691 R 1D < 4 ©

Huang Group (BVI) Limitedh & B3 B 55 4 LA
—[EAEREFEIETAREBIEATORE -

3,556,133,691 % i% 15 ANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# & -
308,992,000R% it A FTtE 4 (HmK) BE A
© B R AR A &384,300,0008% f& 17 B &
BB CERE ERBLtERFHLE (FX)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 23 September 2002 (the “2002
Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to the termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Further details of the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option Scheme

are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHSE
At Lapsed At
Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2018  the year 2019

RZZE-N\§ RER RZB-NE

SREKZRE mA-H X¥ ZR=t-H
Directors

EE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
HBEMLE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
FEELT

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 35,000,000 - 35,000,000

RERKL
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FHELEEEEERLA

BRESE
RZB-——FNAWARTZARAARKREA
FREL ERRERCBBUARMH BB
RIETE ([T ——FBRETE]) - WK
LEARRAR-_ZFT_FRA-+T=ZAHEMRLZ
BREsrE (ST _FBERETE ) -]
B_TT_FBREFE RELARE=
TE_FRBREAERLMERITEZBR
BEEBEAERL A TR B _T——F
BREFEN _TE_FRERESE ZE—
HE  BRERYHRKRME24 -

() S FBRESE
TEBEBRAFERN BE-TT_F
8 R 80 1 T 4 R 7T 2 PR AR Y
28 -

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BRE B BhE

Bt B TEH TEE

HK$ per share

FRET

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“E——% _E-——%-f-+-BF
—A=+—H —F-—%-H=1H

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100

BEUES S e ATt e

= —E-—F-f-+H

21012011 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
E S nay ey Fal =

=E iR S oS s A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Name or category
of participant

SREMLAER

Directors (continued)

Bz ()
Ms. Lilian Ng

BAERT

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BRETL

Mr. Yu Wai Man
RENEE

Other employees
HitEE

In aggregate

At

[SIAN

Total

Adt

< The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

Number of share options

BREHE
At Lapsed At
1 April during 31 March
2018  the year 2019
R=B-NF RER R-F-1%
A-H %% =ZA=t-BH
35,000,000 - 35,000,000
25,000,000 - 25,000,000
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
213,000,000 - 213,000,000
39,040,000 - 39,040,000
252,040,000 - 252,040,000

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

BRER S (E)
(a) —EZT-FRRES (B

Date of
grant of
share options

BRE
REAH

21-01-2011
—2——F
—-A=+-H

21-01-2011
—2——F
—-A=-+-H

21-01-2011
—T—F
—AZt-H

21-01-2011
-F-F

—AZt+-H

Exercise Exercise

period of price of

share options  share options*

SRR BRE

T @

HK$ per share

kAT

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“Z-——%-f-+-RE
2 -%-RC-tH

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“Z-——%-f-+-RE
2 -%-RC-TH

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“E-——f-A-+-H%
“F--f-f-1H

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“E——%¥-A-+-H%
—2-_-—%-H=1H

B8 PR A 2 17 (5 1B T O 4 AR 3 B 1T AT
B RAATRAZ HGELEHH
SAVEE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2012 Share

Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHA
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2018  the year 2019

R-E-NF¥ REA R-B-NF
SRELZDER MA-A X% =ZA=t-8
Directors
=
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 21,000,000 - 21,000,000
BRAERE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 11,000,000 - 11,000,000
BERLL
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
BRRLL
Ms. Lilian Ng 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
BAERL
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 16,000,000 - 16,000,000
REfLt
Mr. Yu Wai Man 16,000,000 - 16,000,000
REXEE

100,000,000

1

100,000,000

64 Annual Report 2019 3§

AR B ()

(b) —E——FHERETE
TRBERAFER  RE-FT——F
B MR B BUSE LE TT 0 R AT 08 2 AR

#ah
=

Date of

grant of
share options
BhiE
REBH

03-09-2013
—T-=F

NR=R

03-09-2013
“2-=F

NA=H

03-09-2013
“E-=%
NA=H

03-09-2013
“2-=F

hAZ=AR

03-09-2013
“T—=F
NAZH

03-09-2013
“T-=f
NA=H

Exercise
period of
share options
BRE
T

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNAZHEZE
“E-=ENACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=ZFNAZHE
“E--FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FNA=HE
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=FNA=HE
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FHA=HZE
“E-=FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
St = e =
“E-_=fNAZH

Exercise

price of
share options*
BERE
e

HK$ per share
BRET

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options

BREHA
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2018  the year 2019

R=B-NE& RER R-F-1F
SRELEALER mA-H %% ZA=t-8
Other employees
HittfE S
In aggregate 34,600,000 - 34,600,000
At
[=EVAN
Total 134,600,000 - 134,600,000
A

=]

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had 386,640,000 share
options outstanding under the Company’s share option
schemes. Should they be fully exercised, the Company will
receive additional share capital of HK$967,000 and share
premium of HK$95,598,000 (before issue expenses). The fair
value of these unexercised options measured in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy (note 2.4 to the financial
statements) amounted to HK$23,015,000 as at the grant
date.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

BRER S (E)
(b) ZE-—FBERES (B

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BRE BRI BRE

REAH TS e

HK$ per share

SR

03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
“F-=F “E--HNAZRE
NAZH “TZ=FNAZH

* PR T E T A R BT
B BAARREZ K ENEST
F LA -

RZZE—NAF=ZA=+—0 BEAQEE
B HEET &l - AN R A1 5 386,640,00017 B A% 4
BARITHE - WEBBITEZEERE A4
a1 & R0 8RR MR 967,000 T M A% 17 35
895,598,000/ 7T (R EEITHEZ) - BRI
HHE ZERRTEZBERERBERNEE
SHBEX (MBBERWF24)HFE2AFE
8 /423,015,0005 7T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
25 June 2019
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FHLEEFTEERQA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB ETER &
Ernst & Young ZXKEETENE AT Tel EE: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BBPBRANEZER Fax {&E: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue HRERE221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY

To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 228, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BFELEEETEARIAARRE

(RERZZMELZHRLE])

=z
=

HMEEIIERET6OE228E ML E
EEEERAB(EAA]) EWERT
(ATHEIERE]) MR BRE -
BHREBER_-_Z-NAF=ZA=1T—HHK
EMBRAREREZALFENGAER
R HEAETHEER HRAEDZEBHERM
HAaBREeRER  UREEMBHRRME
BRIESHITBEME -

BHRR ZEEAVBRRERETES
Ao ([BEGAMAE]) BMO(ER
MBRELE ([EEMBRELL ] EE
mesitRRT EXER-_FT—-NAF=H
=T BENEEMBRARBEZALFE
MEEMBRARGARENE YD ER
FR(RAGEID N RBEREZ SEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I RBETR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHLEEFTEERQA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R &

REETEHE(H)

Key audit matters

BB SR

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMNETNMEERRETER

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
REWENR T EEMRKT

As at 31 March 2019, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$555,760,000, which represented approximately
30% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value gains recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$7,554,000. The valuation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on a number
of significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation for the investment
properties.

RZE-NF=ZRA=+—H URATEEFENK
B ) % 4 R555,760,0008 T - HERBEEER
0% WHEEBRGEANERAAFTEERRZFED
7,554,000 7T « (H{EBIEAE FEXEM L AR
FETERTABERAE IWEFHTRTISE
BBFFRMSHEHERERELEER . EEEEZE
SNER L ERV IR B M ETTIME -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EASTBRRERBEESNGEE M B ®RERMT24 -3
K13

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation experts. In addition, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the work performed
by the valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation by comparing to
market data if available, and assessing the relevance
and reasonableness of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation. We also
involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the investment properties held by the
Group. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the financial statements.

HMPEEE ESEMZENGEERNEN K
BEREEM - It THEBMEEZIRNOIE - i
BAFETHEERMETHN IIERESAHE -G8
1535 18 BT 5 BUR (A0 AT BUAS ) AT L BT A 1R 1
BRWABEBNEREOAEBE TEERERTE AR
FEGEETARBNEIERKX LR EZREGHEBLS
B-BMABEMABNEEZRSE - 7B FK M
i BEEEMRAEREVENGBEPZRRRA

E o BPMEEBTBRRANBERLTEH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I RBETR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHELEEEEERLA

FARETEHE(H)

Key audit matters

CE RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RANBTNMEE@ARETSEE

Estimation of fair value of cruise ships

BEm D FEEMGET

As at 31 March 2019, cruise ships measured at fair
value and included in property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$233,220,000, with
the corresponding revaluation surplus of
approximately HK$2,672,000 and HK$8,576,000
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively for the year ended 31 March
2019. The valuation process is inherently subjective,
and dependent on a number of estimates, such as
the market price per unit, rate of newness and market
discount rate. The Group engaged an external valuer
to perform the valuation for the cruise ships.
RZE-NF=A=+—H0 B8EEYE BELKL
REALFEEFENHRA R233,220,000/8 7T
REBE-_Z-NF=A=+—BHILFER HEH
MEREREMZ2EREABRIERRKD
2,672,0007% 7T %8,576,0008 7T - (A EBIRANE L
BxXEHM TARFETHA VINESELTHE
B ERTSHNER EEEZREIFEE
A BT (5 (E -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EASTBRRERBEESNGEE M B RKMT24 3
K12 e

We evaluated the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation expert. In addition, we evaluated
the appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation expert. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
relevance and reasonableness of the major
assumptions and methodologies adopted in the
valuation by making enquiries to the valuation expert.
We also involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the major assumptions and
methodologies of the valuation of cruise ships held by
the Group, which included performing independent
market research.
BMENE ESEMZENGEEERNEN K
REREBML - BHABTHBMEEZEROIME - Lo
BAFETHEERMETOIERTSE -ER
REBARAGREERELERTEAERERAED
BIRMEAMY TR RERE - URFEEEF
Fﬂmﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ“‘“&ﬁziﬁe TR EE - FKMIIR
PR EREER2E  HHHEMTH &
@Fﬂ%ﬁiﬁrﬂaE’MMEEF'ZEKTE“”&EBi He g
RETEIT SR -

In addition, we performed physical inspection of the
cruise ships to assess whether they are in good
condition. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the financial statements.

o ZHMEREBHNER  UFHEEERR
Rif - BPIMEZERMBBRRANKELSLTEH -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FHLEEFTEERQA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I RBETR &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I RBETR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Chan Sai Yu.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong

25 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ZFeEEER
Year ended 31 March 2019
BHE_T—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Administrative expenses
Foreign exchange differences, net
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
cruise ships, net
Fair value gains on
investment properties
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Diluted
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Notes

Pt &

A 5

TR L IR B AR

EM

HA WA R Wz 5
THRX
ERESE T
Bz EHAR/

(B4 - 3% 12
REMEZ

ATEENR 13
HENB ARG 32
BEKA 7

B 50 A 28 7 6

FIEHER 9

REERA

AT AL
ARAEBA
3 ¥

KARLER
REEEA
EEERER 11

E5ZN

2019 2018
—g-nE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
99,754 202,055
(20,303) (24,951)
79,451 177,104
12,399 3,351
(37,218) (25,904)
(10,990) 9,237
2,672 (78)
7,554 35,634
3,652 -
(593) (725)
56,927 198,619
(16,016) (2,107)
40,911 196,512
18,889 148,611
22,022 47,901
40,911 196,512

HKO0.33 centsi& 1l

HK2.57 centsi& 1Ll

HKO0.33 centsi#

HK2.57 centsi& Ll
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FHLEEFTEERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GZEE2EWER
Year ended 31 March 2019

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment
for a foreign operation
disposed of during the year

Net other comprehensive income/
(loss) that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation
of cruise ships, net

Changes in fair value of equity
investment designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Net other comprehensive income/
(loss) that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/

(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

REFEBER

Hip2mEks~
(B#])

LA B #S B3 0 4R
ERGMNEMEE
W, (BH) :

PE 5 E R
BEBIMEER
EEWELZER
RAFE A &I
RERBR
BEMOBERE

LA 1% BAFE 6 3 0 4R
EREMEMEE
Wz (F1R) %8

R HIE T e E 0 8
EEENEMEE
W, (BE) :

BmoEhEBH
(BEkt) - #%9

EEREAFEEFTA
H b 2 Woas B0 B A
RENAFEEZD

iR HIE T e EF 0 8
ERmMEMEE
W, (F1R) %

FEEHM2ERE
(B18) - HIBRB K

REE2HE RS
M

AT AL :
ARBEEA
FEIE P an

Note
Bt 5

BE-_ZT-NF=A=T—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-nE -2 )N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
40,911 196,512
(12,299) 26,800
1,441 -
(10,858) 26,800
8,576 (11,011)
(453) -
8,123 (11,011)
(2,735) 15,789
38,176 212,301
15,204 162,177
22,972 50,124
38,176 212,301
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FHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HFEMBRAE
31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Available-for-sale investment
Equity investment designated

at fair value through other

comprehensive income
Prepayments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Tax payable

Due to a related company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder of
the Group's subsidiary

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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Notes
MI=E
kRBEE
WM - BEREE 12
REYE 13
A E 2B 14
EERBEAFEEA
Hibh 2 E KA
BERE 14
T A 16
EREEEBT
RBEE
FEWE 5 IR 15
mE2mIA 20
ERRIE - ZE Rk
H i JE U BR 3K 16
BRAFEETA
BarRERE 17
AJ Ug [ 74 18
ReMREEEY 18
MBEELTR
REAE
mEsmIEA 20
FFEIRITR
H At 18 5K 21
JEETFRIE - HAbER
EREE WS 19
JE S %1 18
FE 1 BBt 2 BRI FRIB 30(b)
AEBKNBRARZ
FE1E AR B R
Bt ZER 30(d)
mEBERRE
REBEEFHE
BEERME
=0

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET
372,440 283,438
555,760 676,424
- 780

1,552 -
3,510 -
933,262 960,642
58,290 32,829
- 107

3,035 8,616
27,984 139,154
70 10
855,173 793,767
944,552 974,483
- 3,291

- 1,574
19,083 23,444
77 804

4 9
131,823 -
150,987 29,122
793,565 945,361
1,726,827 1,906,003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
HEMBRAR(E)

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E FiE T FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FFERITR
other borrowings H fth & 3K 21 - 21,863
Loan advanced from a AEEWBAFZ
non-controlling shareholder of FEFEAR AR R
the Group's subsidiary B2 E X 30(d) - 171,823
Deposits received Bl & 19 3,338 3,999
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIEAE 22 19,519 3,749
Total non-current liabilities IRBEERE 22,857 201,434
Net assets BEFHE 1,703,970 1,704,569
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners ERBEAA
of the Company EiEREs
Issued capital BT 23 14,451 14,451
Reserves i 25 1,638,648 1,622,219
1,653,099 1,636,670
Non-controlling interests FERER 50,871 67,899
Total equity MR 1,703,970 1,704,569

Ng Wee Keat Sio lon Kuan
HEA mOEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman
E I=/E
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FHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GFEEREEIRE

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-_ZTZ—NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
LEE LN
Share Share Asset Exchange Non-
Issued  premium option Contributed ~ revaluation  Fair value ~translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEfT R BRE B EEEff  ATEE Ed RE FER Ei
e BER it B& it it L il ait E& 4g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR THR TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 April 2018 KZZ-\FEA-H 14,451 354,993 23,015 162,587 - - 6,697 1074927 1,636,670 67,899 1,704,569
Adjustment on the inital BRERBRNERE
application of HKFRS 9 RAZORRELRE
(note 2.2) (H22) - - - - - 1225 - - 1,225 - 1225
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\£HA-A
(Restated) (mE5) 14451 354993 2015 162,587 - 1225 6,697 1074927 1,637,895 67,899 1,705,794
Profit for the year REREER - - - - - - - 18,889 18889 22022 40911
Other comprehensive TEEEMEE
income/(loss) for the year: 43/ (&) -
Exchange differences related %
to foreign operations - - - - - - (8,378) - (8,378) (2,480)  (10,858)
Surplus on revaluation
of cruise ships - - - - 5,146 - - - 5,146 3,430 8,576
Change in fair value REABRATER
of equity investment SARBRERS
designated at fair HRERES
value through other LTEE
comprehensive income ) - - - - - (453) - - (453) - (453)
Total comprehensive TERZE
income for the year haes - - - - 5,146 (453) (8378) 18,889 15,204 22972 38,176
Dividend paid to BRIEER
non-controlling ¥
shareholders RE = - - - - - - - - (40,000)  (40,000)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE
ZA=t-H 14,451 354,993* 23015* 162,587 5,146* ¥ (1,681)* 1,093816* 1,653,099 50871 1,703,970
© These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~ * I ERFRERQERGESMBHRAERPOER

HK$1,638,648,000 (2018: HK$1,622,219,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Annual Report 2019 F&

1,622,219,000/8 7T) °

A % 1#1,638,648,0008 7T (=T — )\ 4 :



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

GEERBERT(E)
Year ended 31 March 2019
BHE-_ZT-NWF=A=+—HI-&FEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRER AEL
Share Share Asset  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium option Contrbuted ~ revaluation ~ translation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
27 Ry EBRE BY  AEEf B RE R 3
BE  RBER E4 B8 F B -l GEl &R ik

HKS000  HK$0OO  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$0OO  HKS000  HKS'000
Tér  FEr  TEn  TEx  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TER  TER

At 1 April 2017 RZE-+FMA-A 14451 354993 23,015 162,587 6,607 (13,476) 926316 1474493 17,775 1,492,268
Profit for the year TEEER - - - - - - 148611 148611 47,901 196,512
Other comprehensive REREMRE

income/(loss) for the year: W&/ (B) :
Exchange differences releted  BEEEIMEE RS

to foreign operations WERZR - - - - - 20173 - 20173 6627 26800
Deficit on revaluation BRaE
of cruise ships B - - - - (6,607) - - (6607)  (4404)  (11,011)
Total comprehensive rEERE
income for the year ert - - - - (6607) 20173 148611 162177 50,124 212301
At 31 March 2018 RZF-N\§
ZA=1-A 14451 354995 23015 162,587 - 6697 1074927 1636670 67,899 1704569
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ﬁ%iﬁﬁ} ||.§§
Year ended 31 March 2019
BHE_T—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income from equity investment
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Fair value losses/(gains) on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss —
held for trading, net
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative
financial instruments, net
Fair value gains on investment properties
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
cruise ships, net
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
(Decrease)/increase in an amount
due to a related company
Decrease in accruals, other payables
and deposits received
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Notes
P &

RETHzHEE

hE
B 75t A1 A
FERINESEAE

BE XA 7
|ATRI S WA 5
BEATEEFARR

F R E 2 IR BWA 5
BAEEERA

Hit2mR SR RERE

2B B WA 5
HENE BB X

REBEENEE 6
nE 12
BATEEMAER

MRERE 2 A TEE

Bia,/ (M) -

BIEEE 78 5
THEEMIAZRAFEE

BB,/ (W) FE 5, 20
REMEZ AT EENRE 13
BREGHASR (B4) -

F 12
HEMB A RS 32

FEWE 7R 2B
AR B LA
USRS 2R/ ()
BRFEERFARR
MR RE 2R D
FE S BA B 2 R TR

Z ORD) /5
st - At BN KRR
EWRE 2R

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
56,927 198,619
593 725
(11,955) (3,262)
(3,753) (13,519)
(404) -
- 144
25,396 26,025
6,450 (63,015)
(3,184) 2,504
(7,554) (35,634)
(2,672) 78
(3,652) -
56,192 112,665
(25,743) (26,504)
5,358 (3,678)
104,720 345,862
() 9
(3,674) (17,392)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
GRS RERE)
Year ended 31 March 2019

BE_FT-NAF=A=+—HIL5E

2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TER FTET
Cash generated from operations RELEXFK RE 136,848 410,962
Interest received B A 8 11,955 3,262
Interest paid BRFE (593) (725)
Hong Kong tax (paid)/refunded, net (B /REEFBRIE 58 (992) 2,164
Overseas tax (paid)/refunded (BA) /EREEINEE (41) 4
Dividends received from equity investments & Wk B A FBE A
at fair value through profit or loss BRORERE RS BYES 13,519
Net cash flows from operating activities RELEERH REREFR 150,930 429,186
CASH FLOWS FROM RERBZES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES e
Purchases of items of property, EEDE BER
plant and equipment HEER 12 (35) (25,442)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  BE &
plant and equipment FEEBRMEHIE = 260
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits BITFERZRL /() 1,182 (91,501)
Increase in prepayments for purchase of BEEME BELSRME
property, plant and equipment B FIEZE M (3,510) -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE KB D RIR G50 32 17,145 -
Dividend received from equity investment UK B A FBE A
at fair value through other HEit 2 E U
comprehensive income RIERE 2B 404 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) KA/ (AR BB Z
investing activities Reng s 15,186 (116,683)
CASH FLOWS FROM MEEB2RS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES E
New bank loans and other borrowings MERTERREMEK - 80,697
Repayment of bank loans and BRERIERR
other borrowings HA &K 3 (22,638) (82,300)
Repayment of a loan advanced from BEASEMBARL
a non-controlling shareholder FERAR AR
of the Group's subsidiary B2 BEK 31 (40,000) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT R AR AR R
shareholders ZBRE (40,000) -
Net cash flows used in financing activites ~ AR BE TS HEREFE (102,638) (1,603)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
SGERaRERE)

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-_ZTZ—NF=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TERT FHT
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRASEEYR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EmFEE 63,478 310,900
Cash and cash equivalents REENzHE R
at beginning of year BeZEY 543,672 230,769
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes IEEXEH FE (890) 2,003
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEXKZHER
AT END OF YEAR ReZEY 606,260 543,672
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBLEENZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEIM
Cash and bank balances ReMRTER 18 57,247 46,871
Non-pledged time deposits with fEARRE MR
original maturity of less than TR=EAZ
three months when acquired IR TEHER 549,013 496,801
Cash and cash equivalents as FERERERNA
stated in the consolidated Pt ;R & R
statement of cash flows BeEEY 606,260 543,672
Non-pledged time deposits with BARREREmHR
original maturity of more than BBE=AZ
three months when acquired EIRATHTT 248,913 250,095
Cash and cash equivalents as FaBBIRRAKRA
stated in the consolidated Pt ;3R & R
statement of financial position BeEEY 18 855,173 793,767
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. During the
year, the Group was principally engaged in the provision
of cruise ship charter services, property investments and

securities trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Name operations
gL/

&% REwH

Century Rich Investments Limited British Virgin
Islands ("BVI")/

Hong Kong

RERAHE

(#BRxEE])/

&b

Kingston Maritime Limited BVI/
International water
RBRZHE/

278

Jackston Maritime Limited* BVI/
International water
RBRTEE/

N

Queenston Maritime Limited BVI/
International water
RBRREE/

YN
Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong

MEREBRAF &b

New Century Properties Hong Kong
Investments Limited BB

MEENEREBRLA
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1. RAREEER (&)

MR RHER
ARRAETENBARZHENT :

Issued
share capital

ERITRE

US$1
(E

US$1
1%

US$10,000
10,0005 T

US$10,000
10,000% T

HK$2
2B

HK$2
28T

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Group
AEWES
BHEzEI N

2019 2018

ZE-hE ZT-)\F

60 60

60 60

= 60

60 60

100 100

100 100

Principal
activities

EX$ 34

Securities
trading

I pp—
BHEE

Cruise ship
investment

BERE

Cruise ship
investment

BHiE

Cruise ship
investment
BwRE

Property
investment

NERE

Property
investment

MERE



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name operations
EMAL/

28 Rewd
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong
BHREBRAT BA
Wise Century Investments Limited Hong Kong
EMREFRAA &b
New Century Group HK Singapore
Investment Pte. Ltd. s

* Disposed of on 31 August 2018

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. RAREEESR (&)

B D = B E R ()
AATFEMBRAAZFBEMT : ()

Percentage of

Issued equity attributable Principal
share capital to the Group activities
rEEER
BRTRE ERzEAH TEEH
2019 2018
“E-AF ZE-N\E
HK$2 100 100 Property
28T investment
NERE
HK$1 100 100 Property
T investment
NERE
S§1 100 100 Property
B4 investment
NERE

O BERZE-NAFNAZ+—RUEE

NEMBTENBRRHHAARRME

’E -

ERAIIZARARMBERRNEZRR
BARBARFEXEAEAFEIER
SEFEETZNMN -EZAR - W5
HEMKBRBZFE  RESBNIT

Eo
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for cruise ships,
investment properties, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and
derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1 IRBLE X (F)

REEXE(HE)
BEANAREEXEERER I RERET
REBORRLBOUEN  EFEER
CHRAHERETNENE  ~AEEE
ZEMEMEBIEMRBR B4

() EWEREFTHMRREFHEANS
[ % 5

(b) HibERZHEENEN : &

(0 AEBEHRRENBERRE -

o 8~ B BR A BN 2 B 2 B 7 R B
SHIEAER - YA BN S A ERE
i) o BB 2 B O AR B AR B SR
BZAMERE  YHRESAKBLRF
HEEEAL -

BalEtE2mRanSAXSN R
BERAEEGRAEA AR
o AMEN RS BOHE RS AR R A
B AEEANFES AR ZEXZEBHN
PMEEERAE #m WA FAXK
ReRnENGRERAERZEUENE -
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBLE A ()

90

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customer

Transfers of Investment
Property

Foreign Currency
Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1
and HKAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 9, the adoption of the above new and revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

bring together all three aspects of the accounting for

financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.
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22 BEREFBRERRKE

AEBEREANFREMBGHRRE B XKRHA
VAT 3 6IRT A IS /T O &8 B 15 o 2

8 o
BAEUBHRELER R BERER
kil | SR ZH5HE
iz £
BRI BEREER JER BB iR
FAF 2B ERIE9H 2 H
T REFZ
B BHREER
FEaFREAL
BB BREER EHTA
E957
BRI R EEL HEF A KA
251558
BEAUBRELER BB B EER
FE155 2 1B5] FISHEEFE
R A 2 EE
BEGFER REY X EH
FA05 2 1BF]
BE (BRMBRE SEXGHEN
REZEY)RE rE
282258
—E-mERE BB BREER
ZE-NFHAY FIRRBEEER
ZFRENE 2Bl 252857

2{E3]

BRTIXHEB B REERNFIRNF
EBprERBEESN - BB LIRFHIET R E
RIMEAHM BRI BEEETMERKR

MGEeE -

BEEMBBRERNEIONLHMTA
BB RE RN EOR D BT AN
T N\F— B ARZEHBZEES
B &S R AR EIOR L BT A -
BEAHE ARASBIASHEE
2 H=E5E : HANEE - HER
R R -

Annual Report 2019 F

91



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B E R 2 A
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances in equity at 1
April 2018. Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS
39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of

adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position.

A reconciliation between the changes in carrying amounts
under HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS
9 as at 1 April 2018 is as follows:

22 EREFABERKE ()

ERMBREENFOREHTA
()
AEECERREN_F—/\FOHA—H
B E A ER ) s R TE R R R B o Ut
HBEMLEES  MEBEEBRERE
SR ERIEIRESE -

BT E
ATEREIRBEER G RELERE
IRHMBRRARNTE -

R-ZE-N\FOA—H REEFLES
FERFEIFNEE SR NREE Hﬂ'&i&

EERESR AR E LR EE U

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
ERETREREIRTE ERUBESEARIRHE
Re- Re-
Category Amount  classification measurement Amount  Category
pa: E] ENSE EXfitE k] pik-
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st TER TERL TERL TERL
Financial assets
tHEE
Equity investment designated at fair value through Fvocr
other comprehensive income N/A - 780 1225 2,005 (equity)
BERRATEEFAEMZARZNRERE TER (&%)
From: Available-for-sale investment 0) 780
meAHEE RS
Available-for-sale investment AFS? 780 (780) - - N/A
AHEERE AR
To: Equity investment designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income 0) (780)
2 REREATEEGALMZENENRERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 9 financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

22 BEREFBRERKE (&)

ERMBREERNFOREHTA
(4&)
I E (F)

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
ERGTHERIEIRTE ERUBEERARIRHE
Re- Re-
Category Amount  classification measurement Amount  Category
78 &8 ENDE EffitE &8 78
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Trade receivables L8R 32,829 - - 32,829 ACt
EUEHEH
FVPL
Derivative financial instruments FVPL® 107 - - 107 (mandatory)
iEERIA (&%)
Financial assets included in deposits and other receivables L&R 7,686 - - 7,686 AC
AEERe REMEREINEREE
FVPL
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss FVPL 139,154 - - 139,154 (mandatory)
RATEEHARGNRERE (&%)
Cash and cash equivalents L&R 793,767 - - 793,767 AC
ReRAEEEY
974,323 - 1,225 975,548

There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities
previously carried at amortised costs and fair value
through profit or loss remained to be measured at
amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss under

HKFRS 9, respectively.

AEEZERABNEFTREYEXE
ERIFE - NEE Z A ABEXANTE
UEBRATFEEFABSENERAGBE
RIRE B M5 S R BN 7 5l 4B
UABE SHRX AR FT B A RIR R FEE AR

o

)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

' FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income
2 AFS: Available-for-sale investment
3 |L&R: Loans and receivables

4 AC:  Financial assets at amortised cost

> FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Note:

(i) The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate
its previous available-for-sale equity investment as equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive

income.

/mpact on reserves

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves is as

follows:

22 EREFABERKE ()

ERVBREERNFORLHTA
(#&)

DEEFETE (&)

1OFVOCH: BATFEEE AR M EE

2 AFS:  AHIHEZEE
: &R ERMERERIER

fOAC:  NEERAENSREE
S ORVPL: BAFEESAABENEREE

GO
() AEEEAERER T2

AHHEZREREREREATE
Bt AEMBEZEKENBRERE

By 0k 2 o
R EE B RS R B R
MFEMT :

Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9

Balance as at 31 March 2018 under
HKAS 39

Remeasurement of equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income previously
measured at cost under HKAS 39

Balance as at 1 April 2018 under
HKFRS 9
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Leases’
Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
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23 BMENKERZERBYH

& ER

AREE AR AR BEHRIEA TS &
AL 8 R A RO B Il BT AR B RT B &8
S &R -

BREMBREEN  EEHTH
FIWZEFT

BEMBREEN  AFRBENEN
B EFT EfTH#

BAMBREEN REZEABLZL A%
FIRRERG AELAZEY
ERIE 285 BELEZTE

(ZB—F) 285
EAPBREEN HE
%165

ERUBREER  REAAS
F17%

ERGHERNEIR EAMTHE?
REEGFEA
E8% 2 (57T

B ER SEGYK  FREEE
F195 2 1537]

BRGER REPERTHNEERAZ
F285 2 157] RAEZ

55 (BBRUBRE FEHEEZTETH
REZER)RE
£23%

—E-FFER BRI BREELES
—E—+FHY %o BRUBREE
ZERNE BIENS - BB g

ERENRREEEG
ARSI 2B AT

O RZE-AFE-A-BRHZRRAKZ

FEARER

. RIEZHFE-A-RRE2&MAMRZ
FEHAREER

3O RZE—F-A-HIZBHEKZ
FEHARER

o ECRRIESRBIAK B H B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities
and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the

amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address

an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same

classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group plans to adopt
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2019
and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the
Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and measure the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The
Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the
standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end

within 12 months as of the date of initial application.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than
HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and
impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on
1 April 2019 and will assess its business model for such
long-term interests based on the facts and circumstances
that exist on 1 April 2019 using the transitional
requirements in the amendments. The Group also
intends to apply the relief from restating comparative
information for prior periods upon adoption of the

amendments.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions"). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments
by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 April 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments, cruise ships and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the value
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 15%
Motor vehicles 20%
Cruise ships 6% to 25%
Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking

generally every two to three years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately.Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the profit or loss in

the year in which they arise.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge

over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHTBEREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 April 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if

both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows.

«  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHTBEREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
(continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,

or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4AFTESHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies REREMERMEE (REEEH
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) BREERNFEFRHE-ZT-—N\FH
(continued) A—BEEANEX) (&)
Subsequent measurement (continued) Higit 8 (#&)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRFEEFAENHEE (&)
(continued)
This category includes derivative instruments and equity ZERNBEETETAURAEET ET
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected AR RESEARAFEENAR
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive b 2 H W 2R B IR AE R E - T H)
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as MWESZ - B AR BAE R AV AR B R s 1R AT AR
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are ‘}ﬁ)\KEIHH“E' FES e EHET =
recognised as revenue in the profit or loss when the right CDBERBEATEEFABRN S
of payment has been established, it is probable that the é?ﬁ’]ﬂxﬁé&ﬁzﬂﬁ MEREANER
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow WA FER o

to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a EMAIREGAN(BESmaEkIE
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from ERMEALY) PHITET EMNEERE
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the MEREFESH N ETHEB - Bl AT
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related S THEAREEHRBRNEB ARSI
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms ETEMER  BRZREEGHNTRERER
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of FEEFABER  RATETREEE
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at BHDIFWIEREBITETREEE -~ ik
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are AMITEIZAEURFEEFNE  BEAT
measured at fair value with changes in fair value BEZIi AEBR REESNEGRE
recognised in the profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs REs BEARNEMTNHRLRENK
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract BEAFEBEFABSNESREESN
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would DR FETERNE -

otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial

asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract MARGEN(BEeREEES L)
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for MITETEASEEZE - eMEEE
separately. The financial asset host together with the BHERBRATETLAEERSE AR
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its AFEEFAERNERMEE

entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets

recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of

sale in the near term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as fair
value gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as fair value losses in the profit or loss. These
net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for
"Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)"

below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39

are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the profit or loss in finance costs for loans

and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April
2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets, if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or

until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest

rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,

then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

+  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset; or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Simplified approach (continued)

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account and
the loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has

been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the profit or

loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group

of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive

income and recognised in the profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHTBEREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

Annual Report 2019 F&

cREERE(REEBEEA
FIEBAR-ZE—N\FHWMAB—H
AR BUR) ()
AIHREEZ o FIRE (B)
EoBEATHBEECRAKENER
T EEBBREE—BREZAFEE
AES R THREEREKAE o [ KXig]
SREREZRKANG  mIKG] €
EREATEBEERERNAKHER - 40
RETEEREZEE  RitEE GTEKK
EAAREBEAFEE EOEE R/
FEBREBEZEMAZREBEERTHERN
BEBEB gHEMme2E BT BR
WHABZANER - DEAHEE 2K
BITEZRBESE T2FRBRE
B EAFEELBBERENTSD <2
EREAEEMEREPER -

REMBIABIK KRB FE2HE -
EVEﬁlit#lJlﬁﬁHT CAEEEFE(BE
HP BB REQAFEERREMADN
RESHEE -

cREE(RESTBMBERESER
FORBH-ZE-—-NENA—HEE
AREBEHEAEIGRBEARS
ZE-N\EMA—-BRKHEX)

G BB G 2
CREBEEVRERARSBEAEATE
B ABZRNEREE BEXMER
LIEERERE AN E R TAMITET
BERMEERAME) °



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, deposits received, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, an amount due to a related company
and a loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in the profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

« when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for
more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April
2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Revenue from cruise ship charter service income is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and

consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instruments are recognised on changes in fair value at

the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

O)

®

cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing such activities;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading, on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised fair
value gains or losses, on changes in fair value at the

end of the reporting period;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instruments, on changes in fair value at the end of

the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using

the binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF

Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide, if
any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that the
Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies. In
addition, the Group has obtained indemnity letters from
charterers to confirm that all relevant tax exposures of the

Group's cruise ships would be borne by the charterers.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers information
from fair market value by reference to independent
valuations. This conclusion is supported by independent
professional appraisers who were engaged by the Group
during the year to perform valuations on the Group's
investment properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March
2019, the fair values of investment properties and cruise
ships amounted to HK$555,760,000 (2018:
HK$676,424,000) and HK$233,220,000 (2018:
HK$262,860,000), respectively, which were obtained by

reference to quoted second-hand market prices.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2019 was
HK$4,363,000 (2018: HK$4,186,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2019 were
HK$227,083,000 (2018: HK$213,445,000). Further
details are contained in note 22 to the financial

statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their businesses and services

and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages in

the provision of chartering services of cruise ships;

(b) the property investments segment invests in prime
office space and commercial shops for their rental

income potential; and

(c) the securities trading segment engages in the trading
of marketable securities for short-term investment

purposes.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted
profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, finance costs, gain on
disposal of a subsidiary, dividend income from equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income as well as corporate income and expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable and other unallocated corporate assets as

these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, amount due to a
related company, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities

are managed on a group basis.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

2«(&‘./'\1‘LB§*>|,

EREERLZ  AEERBEEB LR
AR EREN BB RENL
EoEmT

() BHREERB D FHERIZHE R
HER

(b) MEREDHIKRENRBEN®HKME
SWAZEERLNETBUREER
iz &

(0 BHEEVIRFNESTAEE
EBERRKRERS -

EREEIHEREASELZEDMONE
B ERIEREREFERAZIREKR
& o 0 BB R IR A% A A /Y 0 B A FT
13 TR HBEGRRAE AT E - &
79 EEBR A A& A B F 807 LR AR R BBk
BADG M ER— 2 X EL T B
MBWA  BEKRAE HEMBRBN
W - RERAFEESAEMEEY

BHRERE ZBRBWA - AREEK
ARFX -

DHMEENE ?‘Efﬁi&fﬁ/\”fgibj
Yol #5238 - DA R B AR5 %éfF
ARZEEETIR %%/EA B

DB BN BB IRIT REMEK
AEEMBERARZIFERERBNZE
o EATRAEE A R FOR - BAKIA B
EHRBERE UREMROELES
B ARZFEEENREEEEEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESTER (E)

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during MAERERN - WES M2 FEHE REE
the year (2018: Nil). ZE-N\FE)
Cruise ship Property Securities
charter semvices investments trading Total
BRAERE nERE 2558 ait
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-AF -3-\& ZE-pE -E-\F ZE-Af -3-)\f ZE-pE C"E-)\f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TEr TAR TEn TAn TiEn TAn TEn

Segment revenue:  APUA:
Income from external ~ RENREF

customers U 79,011 106,390 20,256 21,635 487 74,030 99,754 202,055
Other income EflA
and gains Rl - - 40 29 - - 40 29

Total revenue and other Yt A R Eft:

income YN 79011 106,390 20,296 21,664 487 74,030 99,794 202,084
Segment resuls ARLE 51,203 84,129 24,237 52,366 (3379) 77,157 72,151 213,652
Reconciligtion: HE-

Interest income FIEHA 11,955 3262

Dividend income from ~ KB A TEE
equity investmentat S AEHZE
fair value through KatRE
other comprehensive & 7R &

income BA 404 -
Unallocated income A EUA

and gains e - 3347
Gain on disposal of ~ HEHBAF

a subsidiary glea 3,652 -
Comorate and other 2R E

unallocated expenses ~ RAREX (30,642) (20917)
Finance costs HERA (593) (725)
Profit before tax B B i 56,927 198,619
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BREHIER (E)

Cruise ship Property Securities
charter services investments trading Total
IRHERE NERE #5RE At
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

SE-0E CTNE ZE-AE CT0F ZE-AF CE0F ZE-AE ST
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T et R TRR TAR TER TR TR

Segment assets APEE WIN0 277375 561,08 677446 85,032 163557 819280 1118378
Reconciliation: HE -
Comporate and other A ERE

unallocated assets AAEBE 998,534 816,747
Total assets BESE 1,877,814 1,935,125
Segment liabilities ~ AHEE 13,948 20,160 5471 5,550 1,114 3,291 20,539 29,001
Reconciliation: -
Coporate and other ~ PEREH

unallocated liabilites kAR EfE 153,305 201,555
Total liabilities BEAE 173,844 230,556
Other segment EfaH

information: EH:
Depreciation il 20,303 24951 - - - - 20,303 24,951

Fairvalue gainson AN
nvestment properties, A FE(E
net g 58 = - (7.554)  (35634) -
Defit/(suplus) on B 2 &5
revaluation of cruise 4t/
ships, net (B&h) 38 (11,48) 11,089 - - -
Fair value losses/(gains) %A TFEEA
on equity investments ~ BEKKERE
atfairvalue though 2 ATFEE
profit or loss, net B/
() - 8 - - - - 6450  (63015) 6,450 (63,015)
Fair value losses/(gains) T £BT &
on derivative financel 2 AFE(E
instruments, net EE/
(zs) - 3@ - - - = (3,184) 2504 (3,184) 2504
Copital expenditure*  ZA 1 - 23303 - - - - - 23303

(1558)  (35634)

(11248) 11,089

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant % BEAY HBEDE  BERZENRE -

and equipment.

Annual Report 2019 F 145



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 3R =B 5

31 March 2019

—ET-hhE=RA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue, other income and gains from
external customers
Hong Kong EB
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong REE(TEEES)
The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.
(b) Non-current assets
Hong Kong e
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong ~ RE D (TREEB)

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (2018: available-for-sale
investment).

Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
amounting to over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

BEE A

Customer A'

] Revenue from the provision of cruise ship charter services

146
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FHELEEEEERLA

RETHER (&)

it & & ¥
(a) KESNREFZKA - B
WA R 75
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
14,058 75,081
85,736 127,003
99,794 202,084

bR A B R A R P R B [ I8 A A

i o

(b) FRBEE

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
559,530 554,678
372,180 405,184
931,710 959,862

FHIERESBEEEN AR EM R
HRER  WIABHEEEREAF
BEAEMEERENBERE
(ZZF—)\F: AHHEZRE) -

FTEEFEFER

REBEBFEEAN  hAEBEHUAT10%

IWEMERE ZWAIT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FiE T
74,937 89,907

1 REREBHEAERBEHEA
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents cruise ship charter service income,
gross rental income from investment properties, fair value
gains/losses on equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, fair value gains/losses on derivative
financial instruments and dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss during the

year.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue

Cruise ship charter service income

Gross rental income from investment
properties

Fair value gains/(losses) on equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss — held for trading, net

Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative
financial instruments — transactions
not qualifying as hedges, net

Dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss — held for trading

Other income and gains

Bank interest income

Dividend income from equity
investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Others

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R EE

A

WMwmBEREEA

KEREWMEZ
ik ON G

WA FEER AR E
REZ AT EENE
(BR)—FH1EEE - FH8

TEERTAZAFEE
W,/ (BR)—THFa
RGNS - F8

KERAFEEARE
B R R E 2 BB IR

—RBEEE

H At WA K 2%

RITH B A
KBEERFEEFARLMD
E2HEERERE

Z BB WA
H Al

31 March 2019

—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

WA~ B WA R K&

WASEARFER 2 BmHEEREEA
REREMEZHSWALLRE  BQF
BEFABENEREREZATFEERK
w/BE TEERTAZATEEK
=/ EERREREATFEETABED
BERE ZBRBHA -

WAREAMBA RS Z DT

2019 2018
—B-AE —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
79,011 106,390
20,256 21,635
(6,450) 63,015
3,184 (2,504)
3,753 13,519
99,754 202,055
11,955 3,262
404 .
40 89
12,399 3,351
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BR®AIEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBE KRB AR B MR (GEA) -
(crediting):
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TERT FHET
Depreciation e 12 25,396 26,025
Auditor's remuneration 1% B 6N B & 1,500 1,435
Employee benefit expense B ERAFX
(including directors’ (BiEM T8 ES
remuneration in note 8): )
Salaries and allowances & KRR 13,937 15,006
Pension scheme contributions RREEHEIMHK 649 459
Total staff costs BITRALEEE 14,586 15,465
Minimum lease payments under ,@féfﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ
operating leases ME R 252 144
Foreign exchange differences, ME %, %%
net FEE 10,990 (9,237)
Direct operating expenses AEREIE S8
(including repairs and KEWMER
maintenance) arising from BEELERX
rental-earning investment (BRE#E
properties MrE) 2,551 2,623
Fair value gains on investment KREWEZ A TEE
properties, net W - FHE 13 (7,554) (35,634)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE  BEX
property, plant and equipment REEBERER = 144
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ H & B A & # U e 32 3,652 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7. WMERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RMEKRAEDHWT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Interest on bank loans RITERZFE 589 685
Interest on securities margin BHERBEEP
account facilities & 2 FE 4 40
593 725
DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERAEANESHESHS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=sM<
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed BRIERBBAERXSMAR AT ([H
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of REDESHSEmHEA ([ EWR
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Bl ~&\BABLCRAEN) F383(1)
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), section (@)~ (b) * (QORMOBEN KRR (HF
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong BEEMRER) FRH)E25HE
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies MAFEEEN20T ¢
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Fees ik 414 396
Other emoluments: Hi< -
Salaries and allowances e MoEBL 6,675 6,524
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 153 1,098
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIH R 341 381
7,169 8,003
7,583 8}, 515S)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA ¥R R EE

31 March 2019

s — i AE= B = =g

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(i) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SR $R B 5% 4
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth RA R ST £
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al R BA & 4

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2018: Nil).

Annual Report 2019 F&

8. EERANBSHEEMNS (F)

() EEM = (&)
() BUIHFHTEFE
RAFEEAZN TEBILIEH

TEZEZHLWT
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
138 132
138 132
138 132
414 396

RAFRERA - I REEIF
HTESFZEMHME (=F
—\%F &) -



8.

(i) Executive directors

2019

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

2018

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

There was no arrangement under which a

director waived or agreed to waive any

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

—E-nE

BOTES:

BEALE
RERELL
BEMLL

Rt
REXLE

—TN\E

m
i

ﬁ

E S
Wb oS s o 4
H H H B

T

EEOmE B sl
S =
0

SHE
T

it

=
3
=
ot
'_{,

2o

B
TE
><|,
o
H_T_

remuneration during the year.

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

8. EERANUBSHEEM= (F)

() E=M <= (F)
() BITEFE

Pension
Salaries and Discretionary scheme Total
allowances bonuses contributions remuneration
Rike

FeREH BERA HER:E Wews
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEL FHET TET
1,525 - 76 1,601
1,525 - 76 1,601

893 - 45 938

893 - 45 938

635 53 34 722
1,204 100 65 1.369
6,675 153 341 7,169
1,491 314 90 1,895
1,491 251 87 1,829

870 130 50 1,050

870 130 50 1,050

622 95 36 753

1,180 178 68 1,426
6,524 1,098 381 8,003

RAFERN  WEEFHELR
ZERREREEAME 2%

BE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥ 3R =B aE

31 March 2019

—ET-hhE=RA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERANBSHEEMNS (F)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments (b) ENGEEFREREME
The five highest paid employees during the year RAFER  AfRaHESBIE
included five (2018: five) executive directors, details TR (ZE—NF R BTE
of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a) E-Hle2HFBER EXWF
above. 8(@)NIEE -
9. INCOME TAX 9. FrIEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of RAEREN  BENESHIIREESE
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in B 2 ST RERR TR F 1R 16.50%0 2 B &
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable o Habih @ 2 R T & M B I8 Jh iR 38
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax REBEBAEBR 2 RITHETHE o

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year REFEER 167 1,450
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERETR
in prior years (HBFEEE) 2 (20)
Current — Elsewhere BN ER— H fh3h [
Charge for the year REEER 77 43
Overprovision in prior years MEFEBEEE = C))
Deferred (note 22) EFERLIE (F5E22) 15,770 638
Total tax charge for the year AFEEHIBERLATE 16,016 2,107
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INCOME TAX (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

2019
—E-hF

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised

Tax losses not recognised

Other

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

B Bt A1 A

BEEREFTEZHR
HZARZ
AEHIA

GG

BARG WA
TR Z A X
EBRHBER
AERRBE R

it

BAKEERBXRHE
ZHAER

9. FiiE® ()

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

AR A RHE AT B A 7
2 AR ERE AR BRI BB
R 2 BRI E BB
ZHBRL 2 HK - X REABE (2

EEBR) EBERB R 2 HERNT ¢
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
A Hitrih B CE
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR TERT TET
200 56,727 56,927
33 165 9,644 170 9,677 17.0
2 1.0 = = 2 =
(4,445) (2,2225) (9,487)  (167) (13,932)  (24.5)
2,281 1,140.5 2 = 2,283 4.0
(533)  (266.5) = = (533) (0.9)
2,699 11,3495 = = 2,699 4.7
15902  7,951.0 (82) (02) 15,820 27.8
15939  7,969.5 77 0.1 16,016 28.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued)

2018
—E-)N\F

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised

Others

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

10. DIVIDEND

Proposed final — HK0.3 cents
(2018: Nil) per ordinary share

FHELEEEEERLA

9. FiiE® ()

Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
£ Hip @ BF
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET FHT FHT
FR B A& Rl 114,917 83,702 198,619
REEREFEZHIE 18,961 165 14,229 170 33,190 16.7
Eapd il
SERIE
MR (20) - O - (24) -
BERD WA (12,188) (106) (14,122) (16.9) (26,310) (13.2)
ATz A% 187 0.1 1 - 188 0.1
EHRsHEER (4,595) (4.0) - - (4595) (2.3)
Hith (277) 0.2) (65) (0.1 (342) (0.2)
RASEERTRHE
ZHIBER 2,068 18 39 - 2,107 1.1
10. B E
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
BEEAHAKRE -8RLER
03B MW (ZE—NF : &) 17,341 -
REERERBARESAEFRARAAZKRER

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the

approval of the Company’s shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the number of
ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705 (2018:
5,780,368,705) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into

ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 in respect of a dilution as the impact of
the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect

on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

1. AR FEERBRESFEAEN

BREF

BREARFNCENIRBAR AL AR
RIEFRAE ABGORNFEE T RRNEE
WE #TEBREE5780,368,705M%
(=ZZ—/\# :5,780,368,705%) s+ & -

BEREERNSBENRRARR AR
REREARIERNFEHENFTE - 5
RRAAMEERNEERRAFEAR
HITMEBRR AR ESRELSR
ME9E A - LA #E BT A
WIRRITERE RS EBBRE - RRIA
ZREZBTHEBROMNEFLSH -

BHE_Z-AEKZZT—/\F=ZA=+—
HIEFE WEBETEBROERE
RBFEBEELFAE  REAR®KRITHE
ZERESIRNOBRERRN S HEE
HTIRESEME -
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FHELEEEEERLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per

share are based on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, used in

the basic and diluted earnings per

share calculations

Shares

Number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year, used in the

basic and diluted earnings per

share calculations

Annual Report 2019 £
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AAEEBREXRNEE

BFNRERZARE

EBRBERE A
J& A 3 )

& 12
RAFEANFEESK
EHR N 58 B iy
ERZBE#HT
EEREAE

BREN (&)

1. AR FEBERBRESEAEN

SRERREERF R TRENE

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
18,889 148,611
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

5,780,368,705

5,780,368,705
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018
and 1 April 2018:
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carmying amount

At 1 April 2018, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions

Transfer from investment properties

(note 13)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32)

Surplus on revaluation

Depreciation provided during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2019:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

“2-hE=R=t-R

R-E-\¥=A=1-H
R=F-N\EmA-A:
KA
BiENE

REFR

R-F-NEMA-A-
MEZBAELFE

B
o+
e

REERATERR
B AT

R-E-NE=A=1-R:

RARfiE
2iENE

REFE

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

12.M%E- - BERRX®E

Furniture,

landand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise

buildings improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total
t#E  BENE B

&3 k8 RERRR hE % Chl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Téz ThR Tén Téz THR
25,518 3,114 1,962 2,285 262,860 295,739
(1148) (113 (1672) (368) - (12300
18,370 1 290 1917 262,860 283,438
18370 1 290 1917 262,860 283,438
= = 35 = = 35
123,700 = = = = 123,700
£ £ = - (1205) (1202
- - - - 11,48 11,248
(4,625) (1) (88) (379) (20303  (2539)
- - - - 8533) (853
137,445 = 231 1,538 233,220 372,440
149,218 383 1,826 2,125 233,220 386,772
(11,773) (383  (1,589) (587) - (1433
137,445 - 237 1538 23320 372,440
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019

—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

FHELEEEEERLA

12. 9% - BERRE (&)

Furniture,
landand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total
Tk HENE frfi
7 £ FERRE & B Bt
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tin Tix i Tin Fin Fin
31 March 2018 “E-NEZA=t-H
At 31 March 2017 RZE—t¥=F=1-H
and 1 Apil 2017: R-Z-+5WA-A:
Cost or valuation WAL EE 25518 3114 1792 2654 257400 290478
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (6,433) (3,086) (1,575) (2,067) - (13,161)
Net carrying amount REE 19,085 28 217 587 257400 277317
At 1 Apil 2017, net of RIE—+EMA-R-
accumulated depreciation NREENELFE 19,085 28 217 587 257400 277317
Additions HE - - 170 1,969 23,303 25,442
Disposals HE - - - (404) - (404)
Deficit on revaluation ERER - - - - (11,089)  (11,089)
Depreciation provided during the year RAERR TERR (715) (27) (97) (235)  (4951)  (26,025)
Eichange realignment ERA¥ - - - - 18,197 18,197
At 31 March 2018, net of R-E-\F=R=zT-H"
accumulated depreciation Nh2ENELFE 18,370 1 290 1917 262860 283438
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\F=R=1-H:
Cost or valuation AR GBE 25518 3114 1,962 2285 262860 295739
Accumulated depreciation ZRYTE (7,148) (3113) (1672) (368) - (12300
Net carying amount N 18,370 1 290 1917 262860 283438
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12.ME- - BERZRE(E)

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March AEERBHER T —NF=HAH=+—8
2019 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an MBYEXESERMGEMEREINEET
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open HEBAERARRBERAREUARHET
market, existing use basis. A revaluation surplus of BETEM LA EELECEHAR
HK$11,248,000 (2018: deficit of HK$11,089,000) 711,248,000 7T (Z T — \F : B
resulted from the above valuation, of which surplus of 11,089,000/ 7T) * H & Z#:2,672,000
HK$2,672,000 (2018: deficit of HK$78,000) has been BT (ZZE—\F : BEA4AL78,00087T) B
credited (2018: charged) to the profit or loss and surplus HA(ZE-—NE - B)ER URH
of HK$8,576,000 (2018: deficit of HK$11,011,000) has R #28,576,0008 L (ZE—N\F : 5B
been credited (2018: charged) to other comprehensive 411,011,000 L) BIEETF A (ZE— N
income. FME) A2 EE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's cruise ships:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2019

Cruise ships

2018

Cruise ships

During the vyear, there were

RENEQT

BEE:

Z2-hE
B

“T-N\F
B

12. 9% - BERRE (&)

AFEERR
TRBRASEHBN R FEEFERE

vy

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

REA=+-BAPREHERRA

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
G B BARH BARH
TmEHRE BEBAHE BEGAE
(B—-BX) (B=BX) (B=ZBR) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET FHET
= = 233,220 233,220
- - 262,860 262,860

no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12.ME- - BERZRE(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) REEEREKX(E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFEEERRNE=ZEINATF
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BEFTEMNEE

Cruise ships

B
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FETT
Carrying amount at beginning of year RERTNERE SR 262,860 257,400
Addition NE - 23,303
Depreciation provided during the year RAFERNZITERE (20,303) (24,951)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation Efh & (B4 11,248 (11,089)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWE AR (12,052) -
Exchange realignment HE H SR (8,533) 18,197
Carrying amount as at 31 March R=ZA=+—HKNEE2E 233,220 262,860
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12.
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of cruise ships:

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
EX
b BB FaBREAE

WE - BERFRME(E)

AV EEER (&)

BATR 7% 9t 36 4 185 FFT 58 PR A0 25 1B 000 I
EEHAEORE

Cruise ships

B

Market data or comparative
sales approach

MISEBE R A LR
HEE

Cost approach
A

Market price per unit

BEUHISER

Remaining useful life
FRERFR

Rate of newness

P T

Market discount rate
[ EiEiES

Range

&
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-NF

US$26,451,000
to US$31,216,000
26,451,000% 7T
%31,216,000% 7t

5 to 16 years
5Z165F

5% to 10%
5%Z10%
80% to 100%
80%Z100%

US$31,960,000

to US$35,758,000
31,960,000% 7
%£35,758,000% 1T

410 17 years
4175

4% to 11%
4%ZE11%
80% to 100%
80%Z100%

The market data or comparative sales approach considers
prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments
made to the indicated market prices to reflect the
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to
the market comparative. Assets for which there is an
established second-hand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ships.
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or obsolescence
present, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ships
and a significant increase/decrease in the market
discount rate in isolation would result in a significant

decrease/increase in the fair value of the cruise ships.

Had the cruise ships been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their
carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$187,980,000 (2018: HK$243,530,000).

At 31 March 2019, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$132,167,000 (2018:
HK$12,809,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 27).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

12.M% - - BERRE (E)

DR EERER (&)
RAETSRBEBUEENRITM S E
% MEREGMR - ERBN - &8 &
B FENBR M BN RFTINE A
REBBERBRENREBRRBERL
o SAEHEEEAEFTRABERE
EHMA

EEGAEBRIERTBIIE - K
RS PRV VO b6t P\
FEEAEEN R D o THFTNEE
BAEH I, B EHE R AT EE
KR D/ 50 -

fiéf 7% 55 P ¥ 12 FE 52 K AN R R B AT & OB
BEEEIER AIREZRASEENR
187,980,000 L (=& — J\&F :
243,530,000/8 L) °

R-ZT—-AE=ZA=+—0 AEEE
A FE /132,167,000 L (ZZF — )\
% 12,809,000 7T) 2 B L k&
FEERF EFRAXEEER ZRITR
& (M5E27) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYXE
At 31 March 2019, the Group's investment properties RZE-NE=A=+—H8 XEEH

164

consist of four (2018: five) commercial properties in
Hong Kong and one commercial property in Singapore.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2019 by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$555,760,000 (2018: HK$676,424,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 28(a) to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$200,000,000 (2018: HK$319,400,000) and
investment properties located in Singapore with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$138,960,000 (2018
HK$142,324,000) at 31 March 2019 have been pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as
further detailed in note 27. At 31 March 2018, certain of
the Group's investment properties located in Singapore
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$142,324,000
had been pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group as further detailed in note 21. Further details of
the Group's investment properties are included on pages
231 and 232.
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REBZEEMER —ERIMNE 2
EME-R-_T—AF=A=+—8"
REBNKREMEHBIZEESERM
18 B 2 25 81 5t BB 47 4 PR & 8] &XPREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.
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F 676,424,000 T) - BF - A& E
HITEFREZAEW —RINE-ERME
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R-ZZT—hE=ZA=+—8 A£EE
T #2{8200,000,000/ 7T (ZZF — )\ 4 :
319,400,000 70) 2 i M EHE B E T
& W) % DA K& BRHE 42 {8138,960,000/8
T (ZZF—)\F : 142,324,000 L) 2
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SAEBERZRITHE  E—HFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy REEEERX
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRETASEREMEN R FEER
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: BER:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=+-BRAYEEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
& B BARH BARH
TiEHE BEEBAE BEBGAE
(B—ER) (B=BX) (B=EX) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET FHT TAET
Recurring fair value BEEAT
measurement for: BEE:
2019 —2-1EF
Commercial properties HEDE - - 555,760 555,760
2018 —E-N\F
Commercial properties BEME - - 676,424 676,424
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value REAFEARN BEETF—EARE_[E
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no R EERREEE - BN Ak
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). HAFEEHE(ZTE—NF &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥ 3R =B aE

31 March 2019

—ET-hhE=RA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEEX(E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised PBERRAFEEBANE=ZBRIRHAFE
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BETEMNHE:

Commercial properties

[GE /S

2019 2018

—E-NnF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year RERINREERE 676,424 630,860
Gains from fair value KERAFEBERAEZ

adjustments, net Wam - FEE 7,554 35,634

Transfer to property, plant and BAME  BE R

equipment (note 12) = (fTeE12) (123,700) -

Exchange realignment HE H AR (4,518) 9,930

Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—HKHNEE2E 555,760 676,424
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

properties:
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
EX
fER M Lk 13 PN
Commercial Direct comparison Market price per square foot
properties approach method BFHRHISER
[GE3/ES BERLBR

Income capitalisation

approach method BEARMSEHES
LNV (7 Capitalisation rate
BRI x

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar properties
that have been previously sold (the “comparable sales”);

and adjusting the value of the comparable sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
which a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment property.

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

Market rent per square foot

HK$240 to HK$580

. REWE (&)
AFEEER(E)
TN AEMEEMEMEBEMRABNGHER
fiREZ@MABEBNRE
Range
&
2019 2018
—E-1F “E-N\F
HK$24,000 HK$19,000
to HK$33,000 to HK$38,000
24,0007 T 19,000/ 7T
£33,0008 T 238,000/ 7T

HK$230 to HK$640

2008 TES80B T 230ETE640B T
2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00% 2.75%% 3.00%

BEERLBEBBLREAFMSIREE
UmEWEEMEHRLIKMENTISE
B HEBEMFEERKE=EAZX
TR BRERERAVENSARRERS:
BRzAEHENEUYE ([7 L]
HED  RETLBHEENBEELS

%%o

IZHAERBFIRTIGER -TH
ERAREN BRI EEBREMER
FEEKREEZM, B -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 3R =B 5

31 March 2019

—ET-hhE=RA=+—H

13.

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

FHELEEEEERLA

13.

14.

8- €/E ¢ )

AV EEER (&)

A B AL M E A T BB R A E
M REENFHEBARARER
FRONMEEREREENAN &
RAERERENTHEN T SRS RE
ALt R B MR -

EEHAEATTHRTHHEREA
i % - BT S EBABEM, WD
EEHREME AT EEAEHN
b BRMCLE BBABEN, BT
BHREWEATFEEAERD, 0 -

EEREAFEESAHEME
mBENRERE THEE
ZRE

2019 2018
ZE-AF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Equity investment designated EERZAFEERA
at fair value through other Htz2mEWK =N
comprehensive income RERE
Unlisted equity investments, FELmIRERE -
at fair value BRAFERE 1,552 -
Available-for-sale investment AHEECRE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FEEMRERE - EHEAR - 780

168
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15.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
(continued)

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

As at 31 March 2018, the unlisted equity investment was
stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measure reliably. The Group did not intended to dispose

it in near future.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables EWKE F R
The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
and charterers with an aggregate value of
HK$18,319,000 (2018: HK$21,857,000). Except for
trade receivables of HK$57,048,000 (2018:
HK$24,296,000) which bear interest at fixed rates, the

trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

15.

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

EERBEAFEEFAHEMEE
HBENRERE THEE
ZRE (&)

LRI E D NA ML EE /A
FEEFAREMCEzZEKS  RESAE
ERSERREMNIEE BREE -

RZZE-N\E=ZRA=+—8 kLTK
BEEUNANREREINER  REASE
BRAVEEMGBFANBEAKR UHE=S
R HRATFEETREASERAE - K
SEESETAKKGELE -

EWE 5 R
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT F&T
58,290 32,829

AEFEBERCERGEREZNUEE
AT  BREBEEARELE=TH
NEE-B—HEZEEELR - A%
B 1F 77 SKE R E R 2 FEUCAR 30 DA BR =2
EH o mMERAESTHESHRBMY
FIE - AEBERBEERERZERME
ZHAARAL EERAKRERBRS H#
18,319,000 T (=T — N\ :
21,857,000F L) 2& & > K&
57,048,000 L (=& — J\ f :
24,296,000/ 7T) B FE W B 5 AR FR iR
ENEFENEN  BKRE SRR

AFE e

N\
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 15.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

—EAR
_:n:“1ﬂ

Within T month

1 to 2 months

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
31 March 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the
Group's trade receivables is minimal for all the above

bands of trade receivables.
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REBRFAH RBEHRBERES
BRFEITHERIR D TMT :

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
57,783 30,645
507 2,184
58,290 32,829
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 March 2018

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

As at 31 March 2019, certain subsidiaries have pledged
trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$822,000 to secure banking facilities granted (note 27).
As at 31 March 2018, certain subsidiaries had pledged
trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$5,000 and HK$78,000 to secure bank loans and
banking facilities granted, respectively (notes 21 and 27).

REE IR AERE
BHIR—EA
BHM—==EAH

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

15. EWE 5 Bk (&)
RBE-Z-N\F=A=t—-HLF
ERBEE G EEINRNRE
3 45 B B ok SR BR R E 2 FEMCE B AR K 2
R AATINT :

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000

THETT

24,296
6,349
2,184

32,829

REBHTTARIEREZ BERRTER S
TRMBEEER  REEIHMLEHR
FIARCER ©

BB R AERE 2 R U AR SR Y B B B
AEBEBRFCBEZEBIETAR R
BBRELR ARREFEARR BRZ
FERZGEEEIRAUESKREDMAAELR
WRBKALZEEE RBARZSE
FEERIE L RUE B -

R_B—AE=A=+—8 ETWB
ANAE KL KREES £ //822,000% 7T
MEWE ZERERERBITHRENK
(M E27) - RZZFE—NE=A
=+—H HBTHBARELEBER
B A £ /55,0007 T 78,0007 JT K f&
WE SRR - D RIESIRITE R RIR
TEE (MaE21X&27)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16.
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TE T FRIE

Deposits and other receivables 12 & K H At & AR K
Less: Non-current portion B FEREELD
Current portion mE B

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired

and there was no recent history of default.

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented rental
and management fee deposits. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The expected
credit losses for the Group's deposits and other

receivable are minimal.
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ANRE BEREMEVERER

2019 2018
—g-hE —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
4,498 930
2,047 7,686
6,545 8,616
(3,510) -
3,035 8,616

MELREERCAMNERE £
HA R 8 48 R SRR R % ©
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17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, FlRERE
at market value ®BME

The above equity investments at 31 March 2019 and
2018 were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss.

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$27,984,000 were pledged to secure
securities margin account facilities granted to the Group
(note 27). At 31 March 2018, the Group's equity
investments amounting to HK$48,118,000 and
HK$139,154,000 were pledged to secure other
borrowing and securities margin account facilities granted,

respectively (notes 21 and 27).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group's equity investments
remained unchanged, the market value of the Group's
equity investments at the date of approval of these

financial statements was approximately HK$25,362,000.
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31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

17. BRAFEEFABENRERE

2019 2018
—®-hE —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
27,984 139,154

RZE—NAERZZE-NF=ZA=+—
B FliREREDNDERFEESE -
REERVBERKIEERKRATEER
FABRENERMEE -

R-ZZT—AE=ZA=+—8 £x&£E@EAH
27,984,000/ T 2 kiR E D EE
AURGBRTAEEZESREDR
F&E (f&E27) RZTE-NF=H
=+—H XEEEFHA48,118,000/ 7T
139,154,000 7T 7 REK & 2 1E K
A AP RREGEMERREFRE S
RP®AE (MF21%27) -

B3R A B O R R 49 AR 2 TR

AEEMRERERN AT BREAEZ
HEMIEA 525,362,000 It °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1. RERKREEEY

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits EHITE R

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$2,000 (2018:
HK$10,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.
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2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
57,247 46,871
797,926 746,896
855,173 793,767

RIBEHR AEEUARE (AR
) REEBNNBEERREEEY
#93%2,000/8 7L (ZF — /A% 1 10,000/
) BEARETHEEAEMERKAHR
R BREIBE B KR IMNE B K
I R4E EERNEEERRE K&
B EREREETINEEBORITEA
REHBEEMEY -

RITFRIRIEE B RITERM RZF
B RS o BHERER TR
NF—HE+_@AATE RFIELEH
ZERBESHFEME @ Wik K8 HE B
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RN EER B ST R KRR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
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19. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 19. FEETF1E - EMENEREFEE U
RECEIVED rE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Accruals FE&T IR 1,978 1,684
Other payables and deposits received Hitp A EBERRE KRS 20,443 25,759
22,421 27,443
Portion classified as DI RIERE
non-current liabilities BENIMHD (3,338) (3,999)
Current portion mE 19,083 23,444
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are HihpENAEZ AT S  — ARt
normally settled on 90-day terms. AR o
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Equity option accumulator REHRERE
contracts RBHESD

Equity option decumulator PREREAME RTE
contracts ROLHEA L

The equity option accumulator contracts and equity
option decumulator contracts were a series of forward
contracts for the Group to accumulate and decumulate,
respectively, specific units of certain securities listed on
the Stock Exchange according to the contracts at
predetermined prices on every trading day. The equity
option accumulator contracts and equity option
decumulator contracts would be terminated automatically
if the closing prices of the underlying securities on any
specified trading day during the contract periods are at or
above, and at or below, respectively, the predetermined
knock-out prices.

These contracts were derivative financial instruments and
were measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 March 2019, all contracts expired and
fair value gains of HK$3,184,000 in respect of these
contracts were recognised in the profit or loss. As at 31
March 2018, the fair values of the equity option
accumulator contracts and equity option decumulator
contracts for the Group were stated at a credit balance of
HK$510,000 and a net credit balance of HK$2,674,000,
respectively, based on the valuation performed by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, and fair value
losses of HK$2,504,000 in respect of these contracts
were recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2018.
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20. TE€®MTIA

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities

BE &8E BE BfE

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TERT THET TAT

= = . 510
- - 107 2,781
- - 107 3,291

EEREIEARRREAORREE
REREHRREHNAAEEREANHE
BEXZARBTERRERBENRRR
ROEBRXEMNETESNREE
M —RIEHAH  WREEESFE
BHHREATMERRZBNKHED
ERIEREEFRFEREE R
B AEMEREABPEAOLK
SHREZBATHREOEEHRIL -

=113
N

5%
B+ 5 9

SHAENTESRTEAE  RBEHRE
EBEFAE - R_ZT—NEFE=A
—HB FBEEAHYEKEE - Wt
EENTEETNERATFEEKS
3,184,000 L - R=ZE—\F=H
=t+t—H REBIFEEAERMGHER
EITHHE AEEREHAEZERE
HESHEREHEZBRLHES LD
A FEED B AE T4 #510,000%
TR E 4 £ F 582,674,000 T 0 I
EREBE_ZT—N\E=A=+—HILE
EARZESHNEBRERNERATFER
E5182,504,000/%8 T °
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31 March 2019
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21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 21. 5T ERTREMER

BORROWINGS
2019 2018
“E-nF “T-N\E
Contractual
HK$'000 interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
TR BB = (%) 5EH FER
Current RE
Current portion of long-term & Hi3$R 17 & 30 A Singapore Interbank
bank loans, secured BB (FER) offered rate + 1.38% p.a. 2019 877
g
BRITAERE + 138EFE  —T—NF
Other borrowing repayable  [EZSkIEiEH) Singapore Interbank
on demand, secured Hitfa sk (FER) offered rate + 2.00% p.a.  On demand 697
R
BRORERE +200EFE EEREER
1,574
Non-current FRE
Long-term bank loans, RARTER Singapore Interbank
secured (FER) offered rate + 1.38% p.a. 2020 - 2038 21,863
—E-%F
Giigilb z
BITAERE + 138EFE  —T=N\F

23,437
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21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

21. s ERIT R EAER ()

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Analysed into: DR

Bank loans repayable: FEEEMRITER :
Within one year or on demand R—F AN EER 877
In the second year RE=F 900
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFLF (BEEEMF) 2,840
Beyond the fifth year RERFI%E 18,123
22,740

Other borrowing repayable: JEEEREMER
Within one year or on demand R—F AN EER 697
23,437

At 31 March 2018, the Group's bank loans were secured
by:

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group's investment
properties which had an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$142,324,000 (note 13);

(i) corporate guarantees up to HK$216,910,000
provided by the Company; and

(iii) rental assignment over certain of the Group's
investment properties, which included the Group's
trade receivables with a carrying amount of

approximately HK$5,000.
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RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—HB  *£ER

() XEBzETREDEZLB B
RIEBR ZEEEZBERE
#9142,324,000%8 70 (M FE13)
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216,910,000/& ¢ : &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER CETRRITRE M AR (F)
BORROWINGS (continued)
At 31 March 2018, the Group's other borrowing was RZZE-N\F=ZA=1+—H  x£EBH
secured by certain of the Group's equity investments with HtUERUAEEERETD 8 Y
a carrying amount of approximately HK$48,118,000. 48,118,000/8 LW & TR ER EE AR
o
At 31 March 2018, all bank and other borrowings were RZZE-NEFE=ZA=+—H"  FIBRT
denominated in Singapore dollars and bore interest at &EMFFKTJM%HJMEZ REEEBEMN -
floating interest rates. Wi Z B M EFE
22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 2. EERELEE AF
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BELEHBEEEREERAFERNZEE
during the year are as follows: U
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEAE
2019
—E-hF
Temporary

difference on
property, plant
and equipment

M- BERRE

WE =

HK$'000

FTHERT

At 1 April 2018 NR_E—-\FHA—H 7,935
Deferred tax charged to the RAFERNERZ AR Z

profit or loss during the year (note 9) EAET A (M 5E9) 15,947
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-ZE-—hNhF=HA=+—H

at 31 March 2019 ZIEEHIBRERR 23,882
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31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2018
Deferred tax credited to the

profit or loss during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2019

Annual Report 2019 £

22. EEBIHEE BE (&)
EERABBEBMNEERAFREAZES

W (&)
BEEREEE
2019
—E-NF
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
] {46 88 R 2R
ERB Rz &8
HK$'000
THET
RZZE-NFMNH—H (4,186)
RAFERNEBFEANTAZ
RIETIE (MH5E9) (177)
R_ZE-NAF=A=+—H
ZIEETIIEE EEE (4,363)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) . IEEHEBEEE &B& (&)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BERIBEEREERAFEANZE
during the year are as follows: (continued) mr ()
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHBEEE
2018
—E-)N\F
Temporary

difference on
property, plant
and equipment

FOR ISP

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2017 MRZZE—+FMH—H 7,278
Deferred tax charged to the RAFERNERZ AR Z

profit or loss during the year (note 9) EER IR (M 5E9) 657
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—NF=ZA=+—H

at 31 March 2018 ZERERIABERTE 7,935
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31 March 2019
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

2. EFEEHEEE BE(E)
B BEEREERAFERNZEH
mT ()

Deferred tax assets BEEHIREE
2018
—E—N\F
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
A 8H R 2R
JE R H M) 2 B 18
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFMHWHA—H (4,167)
Deferred tax credited to the RAFERNEBFEANTAZ
profit or loss during the year (note 9) EIERTE (MFE9) (19)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—-—N\F=ZA=+—H
at 31 March 2018 ZIEETIIEE EEE (4,186)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised iR & B B AROR &

in the consolidated statement of R 2 IRLER I8
financial position BEFE

1 82 Annual Report 2019 3§

BIEmmE - MBEARKRAE TEREN
REENABE THEE - A THIMERM
BHRERGEZAEBEELER AL SR ZD
i

2019 2018
—®-hE -—T-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
19,519 3,749
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$253,444,000 (2018: HK$238,813,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$37,469,000 (2018: HK$35,218,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can

be utilised.

At 31 March 2019, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2018: Nil) for tax that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax

should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.
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22 EERBEE B E (H)

AEBEBREBELEMR BB B
253,444,000%8 L (ZF — )\ & -
238,813,000 L) - REBEBELE 2T
EEEAERAREREFSEEREZA
B 2 AR PERRBE 4 A o A& B W R 3E %
EREBEEBERELCHEEE
37,469,000 T (=& — N\ & -
35,218,000/ 7T) - A EMIEEE T
REEEBEBE-—RERZAR MAERE
ErRBEEEERRBAMNARHEZER
HEE -

RZZE-NE=ZRA=+—H XEEZ
MBARYEEAKRELBNMASN 2
MEHBEMERRERELEHARE
—E-NFE) AN ERIARE
b AREYEBINRBAE -

408 0 2 AR SRR AR, 3 B AT (]
FHIER -
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31 March 2019
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23. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised:
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each

Issued and fully paid:
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each

23,

HE

40,000,000,000k% & % H &

0.00257 T 2 i@ %

ERITREE
5,780,368,705%

24.

Share options
Details of the Company's share option schemes and the
share options granted under the schemes are included in

note 24 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) and the termination of the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 23 September
2002 (the 2002 Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (collectively referred to as the “Schemes”)
are operated by the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who

contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows:

(a

(b)

Participants

Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

Subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of an
option (the “Date of Grant”) which must be a

business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24,

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

BRESE (&)

ZEEZ
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B FRARKAEEEMRKER
Al RIS HER

e
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(b) RBEE
é“ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%‘\}ii BEMITE
+ R R ] —%1&73/\7—%&@
¢Wﬁ%%i

() ARAEFREEO.0025% T
Z & (TAR 5 1) 12 B i i &%
HHEMB(ELBHD (KER
EER) B WTE (CABRZ AT
HIKRMEERHE)

(i) ROEEEREHD AR AE
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FTEMERMEERE)
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31 March 2019
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

©

(d)

(e

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Schemes and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Schemes (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee under the Schemes (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being
(the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from
the Date of Grant.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

®

(®

Remaining life of the Schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme terminated on 4
September 2012. No further options shall thereafter
be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
but the options which had been granted during its
life shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects the provisions of the 2002 Share Option

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended.

Acceptance of options

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 and 30 days for the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, respectively, from the Date of Grant, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total

by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

FHLEEFTEERQA
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BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

Schemes during the year:

At beginning of year and
31 March

Annual Report 2019 £

2019
—E-NF

Weighted
average
exercise price
g
THEE

HK$ per share
FRET

=A=+—H 0.1902

FHELEEEEERLA

Number of average

ERAERE (E)
WARFER - RIEHEH BT WA
ZBBRERENT

2018
—ZE-N\F
Weighted

Number of

share options  exercise price  share options

I
ERERE 171E1(E Bl E
‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
¥ BRAET +

386,640 0.1902 386,640



24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2019
—EB-NF
Number of share options
BREHAR
‘000
:F

252,040

134,600

Exercise price*
TREE*

HK$ per share
BRET

0.2100

0.1532

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

24, B FETTE (E)

RBERR - WARITEZEREZITE
EBRITEHET

Exercise period

17185

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—F¥-——%-A=t+-HE=%
—2--%-A=+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E2-=HhAA=HE
—EC=HRAZH

2018
—ZT-N\F
Number of share options
BRREHE
‘000
:F

252,040

134,600

Exercise price*
TTIEE*

HK$ per share
SR

0.2100

0.1532

Exercise period

1T1EH

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—F——%—-A=-+—HE
—E—F%—H=Z+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=FNA=H=E
—E-_=%hA-H

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share

options granted to employees and directors.

X The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

BETRENRESMRARITEZEREL
EREY-

* O MRAHERFAET  HEARQA

AL MBULS  BRENTT
EEFRETHE -
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A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

25.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
386,640,000 share options outstanding under the
Schemes. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 386,640,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$967,000 and share premium of
HK$95,598,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 386,640,000 share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented approximately

6.7% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 80 and 81 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Annual Report 2019 F&

FHELEEEEERLA

24. BIRREFTEI (&)

25.

RBER  REZZE - ARFAE
386,640,000 & A% # 1 AR T {E - AR
REIBRERAREBT  BEITEEARIT
EZEREBSEHRETEINENADF
386,640,000% & i - LA R #H MR AR
967,000/ 7T M #% 17 ' 895,598,000
TTORMBRFEITRAZ) ©

RYERRBREZ B RIFZER
& - A xR H386,640,00017 8 4 i
RITHE WARAE BB ETRG K
6.7% °

&

AEBEZ FEREMNAFEMBEF
B2REZHNEHTEREFORSIE
ZIRERBEHHRRET -

AEBEZEHBRBRKE :

() AEER-ANZEFAAT=H#
T2EH  RARABRBEAEEHE
AP B TT IO T (E R B AN R B P IR
B 2 AR R IR EE B AR
BREMZHN &

(i) RE-—NANFRA-BETZR
AEEAMBERMEERPREL -



25.

26.

27.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

RESERVES (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

expire or be forfeited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$190,000,000 (2018:
HK$216,910,000) given to banks to secure general credit
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Group. In
the prior year, credit facilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$22,740,000 had been utilised by these subsidiaries
in respect of these guarantees as at the end of the

reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's banking facilities and securities
margin account facilities, which are secured by the assets
of the Group, are included in notes 12, 13, 15 and 17 to

the financial statements.

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.

26.

27.

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

@ (8])
BRIEBRECI98TFERRLE)KBET) -
FEZEBESAMERT 2 & TERAT - &
SECEHMRBAUTDIRTRE -

BEREFRBEACRBEYEFTRZE
Bz R FEE FBERYBREME
240D R EBE MR Z €5 BURE
— e EARBRERITEE 8
ARESSERERMEER kWA
A S B A B A SO2 Ui - BB B R RE
ERERERGM -

RAREE
RBEHR  RARIKB TFRITZRER
YEIR%E5190,000,000 70 (ZZF—/)\4F
216,910,000/ 7T) ' fERA KB E T
BRAAMER —REEMREZER - R
EFEN EREHKR ZEWBAA
MZEERBED A S $£22,740,000%
TZIEERmE -

EEEA
ERASERTEEBESFRESEFPME
(BEAXEEEEER) cHFB2RHE
R BHREME12 13 15K17 °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor
The Group leases its cruise ships (note 12) and
investment properties (note 13) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms

ranging from one to three years.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its charterers and

tenants falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR
In the second to fifth years, REZZFRF
inclusive (BHEEEMSF)

Annual Report 2019 F&

8. REMERH
(@) AEHBA F 4

AEERBEEEMELHEERS
W (ME12) RIREME (M &
13)  MARZHEPNF—ZE=F -

R-ZF-AR=F—-N%F=A
=t—B ARERBEEMAR
MRS 2 R G AT E AR
THIF R KRR S K
ESEWT :

2019 2018
—®-hE —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
37,282 29,566
19,459 13,775
56,741 43,341
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 28. REHELH (&)

(b) As lessee (b) AEFE A & 14
The Group leases certain of its commercial REBRBCEHEZHHERS
properties under operating lease arrangements, with TREDE  MeBmZEHAN M
leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to E=Fo
three years.
At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had total R—ZE—AERZ-_ZTE—N\NF=AH

future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

+ B NEERETAREL
EHEERTIFHRNZN ZARK
B FIBAENT ¢

Dﬂ}» [

hﬂm

2019 2018
—EB-NEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
Within one year R—FRA 184 196
In the second to fifth years, RE_ZEZFRF
inclusive (BHEEEMSF) 48 224
232 420
29. COMMITMENTS 29. 7K
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed Br | BT 3E28(b) s il ) 45 & M & A G
in note 28(b) above, the Group had the following capital G RIREHR  REBEHMNU TER
commitments as at the end of the reporting period. A o
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for, BEROERERE
leasehold improvements ZHEMERE 1,376 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30. @B AR F

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations:

Rental income received from
from a fellow subsidiary

Management fee paid to a
related company

Service fee paid to a
related company

Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang)

Cheow Leng

Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng
Sale of property, plant and

equipment to a director

Annual Report 2019 F&

BERERMBLRZ
EEALON
BB AR Z
ERER
L AR Z
RIS E

TR EBBEEZ
e
SREEREEZF S
HEME - BE R
REBETES

BB SRR B BEREN - R
AEFN  AEBRBHS 2 EARZS
mF :

Notes

B EE

0]

(i)

(iii)

(V)
W)

(vi)

2019
=B-NF
HK$'000
TER

346

104

122
799

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

TET

346

104

454

135
897

80




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations: (continued)

Notes:

0)

(i)

(iii)

)

)

(i)

The rental income was received based on a tenancy
agreement entered into between the Group and a
fellow subsidiary at a monthly rental rate of
HK$28,800 (2018: HK$28,800).

The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Croup and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,655 (2018:
HK$8,670).

In the prior year, the service fee was paid to Universal
Shipmanagement Pte. Ltd., a related company, for
handling the drydocking arrangement of a cruise ship

on behalf of the Group.

The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one of
the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
which holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

In the prior year, property, plant and equipment with
a carrying amount of HK$131,000 was sold to Mr. Yu
Wai Man, who is one of the directors of the

Company, at a consideration of HK$80,000.

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

30. BB A R 5 ()
(a) BAKEEEERAHHRS -
€
GEE

() HERARAEHR—BRZRKH
B A B RT3 2 T8 & 1 % WA
A1 ©28,8008 T (=T —/\F :
28,8008 7T) °

(iy BEEEREAEEE-—HEKL
AlHuang & Co (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. ([Huang & Col) BT 41T
BRI LA HEWER - 8 AE
BERL8,6558 T (ZT—/\F:
8,670 7T) °

(iy REFERN RBEBDRARR
SEEEBHEMISTHEmM
T -HE BB 2 AUniversal
Shipmanagement Pte. Ltd. °

vy e XN TEBBEE HE
—(A2EEEIRTARETEA
e RIETRHAARA&EE
% A &]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
ZEEbME -

v FehINTFTEERTE HER
—fExEERzET —UEER
BN MZEEEXHAEERF
B HYERR A AlHuang Group (BVI)
Limitedz 2 8P #E 2 -

(viy REFERN - BREEF131,000%
THWE BERREBLE T —
BARRREETREX KL B
R AB 80,0007 TT °
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31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Due to a related company

©

As at 31 March 2019, as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position, the
Group had an outstanding balance due to a related
company of HK$4,000 (2018: HK$9,000). This
balance is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed

terms of repayment.

Commitments with related parties

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Company for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 30(a)(ii) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$26,000
(2018: HK$27,000).

In the prior year, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a one-year lease agreement ending 31 March
2019 with ETC Finance Limited ("ETC"), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, to lease its investment
property to ETC. The rental income received from
ETC for the year was disclosed in note 30(a)(i) to
the financial statements. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had a total future minimum lease receivable
from ETC amounting to HK$346,000.
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30. A SR 5 (&)

(b)

©

JE 15t B BSE 1 ) 30 1B
R-ZZT—AF=A=+—8 #@W
BEVBRARERE  ~EEERM
BAHsE N Bl R IE 2 RE R 82 /B4,000
BT (ZZ—/)\F : 9,000 7T) °
EREREER 2 RERTE
BAE o

ER R T B G
RZE—Z=ZFMA—H0 x&EE—
ELNEPNGIEEE YNNG Rl Sk NG|
Huang & Cor] L R %tk - WA A
BRAEBERHETHRRYE  AEKR
IHBMBMA=EA -REAFEAX
f FHuang & Com B2 & A i1 7%
HEMFI0@(HAEE - R =T
—hNF=A=+—8 AEEEHN
Huang & CoMy R R IKE B & A 42
RR#926,0008 T (ZF — N\ :
27,000/ 7C) ©

REFERN  AEE—HWEBRF
HBANRIRRME AR SRR B
BERAGB([ZRFZDIILE#HZEZ
T-NEF=ZA=+—RHILAH—F
WEEHZ HEREVELAT
SRF - RAFEAWEE HRK
B & WA B SRR FE30(a) (i)
NFEE - RZE—N\F=ZA=74—
B AEEEKSRAKRRKE
& K18 4258346,00078 7T °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary:

Loan advanced from a non-controlling

shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited (“New Century Cruise Line"), a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
shareholder shall not demand repayment of this
loan unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders of the subsidiary for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. As at 31 March 2019, the loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
and is classified as a current liability. As at 31 March
2018, in the opinion of the directors, after
confirming with New Century Cruise Line, there was
no intention for New Century Cruise Line to demand
the subsidiary of the Group to repay this loan in the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the loan was classified as a non-
current liability. New Century Cruise Line is a fellow

subsidiary of the Company.

The compensation of key management personnel of
the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to

(d) above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

30. A SRR 5 (&)

(d)

O)

REE M B QR 2 FFEBBIR B
ZER

AEENE AR ZIFER
BERBN 2 E R

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
131,823 171,823

BIEAEEE KB AR ZIEE
f% & BNew Century Cruise Line
International Limited ([ New Century
Cruise Linel) ZT3Z 2 R R 1% - B
HFZMBEARNEBRREZEL
BRZEARBRERREKRE
ERBH BRARRTEERER
ZEER - R_ZE—AF=A
=+—H ZEXRREEMR &8
RARERER AWHERTPE
B - RZE—NF=A=+—8"
EERR
Cruise LinefF i R & » New
Century Cruise Linef & Z kA&
B 2% BT B 1 R R B R AR 5 R 2R
TZEARNEEZEBEER - Bk
ZEERDOBRIERBAE-
New Century Cruise Line&ZANA 7]
ZERMEAR o

Cf& BANew Century

ARARETEEREAB ZFHHME XA
BRI 8 (a) K FE -

Fi(@)E(d)BZ BT X5 T EK £
MRAETOAZEMAE CBER S
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  31. & 4& B & A B M

~7

CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities MEETHEENBEZS
2019
—E-NF
Loan advanced from
a non-controlling
Bank and shareholder of the
other borrowings Group's subsidiary Total
AEEMELR
BITR ZHEERRR
HpfE R BHZER G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET THL
At 1 April 2018 R=E-/\FEA-H 23,437 171,823 195,260
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEREREELNED (22,638) (40,000) (62,638)
Foreign exchange movement IMEE (799) - (799)
At 31 March 2019 R=F-AF=A=1-H - 131,823 131,823
2018
—E-N\F
Bank and
other borrowings
HRAT e EL b fE 5K
HK$'000
THET
At 1 April 2017 R-_E—+FMA—H 23,383
Changes from financing cash flows MERGRBELNE (1,603)
Foreign exchange movement N FE & 1,657
At 31 March 2018 T RS Tl e gl = 23,437
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 2. HEWE AT
2019
—E-NF
Note HK$'000
M =E F#& T
Net assets disposed of: HEMEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NRE 12 12,052
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTHER 15
12,067
Exchange fluctuation reserve B 5, & 7 s 1,441
13,508
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB QR MK 3,652
17,160
Satisfied by: SENPIE-
Cash R 17,160
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal is WREHESENESRESTHT
as follows:
HK$'000
F#E T
Cash consideration HWERE 17,160
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEMNRE RIRTTE R (15)
Net cash inflow of cash and cash BEMRESEEMRA
equivalents FRE 17,145
The aggregate consideration of US$2,200,000 (equivalent 4 % 82,200,000 T (HE R
to HK$17,160,000) included the assumption of a 17,160,000/8 J0) B2 A EREE R
shareholder’'s loan of S$1,938,000 (approximately 1,938,000% 7T (4911,163,000/& 7T) °

HK$11,163,000).
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BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 3. EBERFEREZNTGOE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EMB AT
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material BEAEEREZNAEBNE R A
non-controlling interests are set out below: HEFHHT
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:
FEREREENREAEZADL
Century Rich Investments Limited 40 40
Jackston Maritime Limited” - 40
Queenston Maritime Limited 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited 40 40
New Century Maritime Limited 40 40
Disposed of on 31 August 2018 * BERZE-NFNA=Z+—HHLE
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:
PERFFERERZNEIEERN,(FE) -
Century Rich Investments Limited (112) 14,172
Jackston Maritime Limited (1,143) 5,206
Queenston Maritime Limited 9,873 9,758
Kingston Maritime Limited 13,129 17,571
New Century Maritime Limited 275 1,194
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year:
REFERINFHEREZNIRE .
New Century Maritime Limited 40,000 -
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests
at the reporting dates:
RIBEDHFEERERNRTEER
Century Rich Investments Limited 14,903 15,015
Jackston Maritime Limited - 8,754
Queenston Maritime Limited 12,175 13,828
Kingston Maritime Limited 18,928 22,012
New Century Maritime Limited 4,895 S5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL . EBERFEREZNTGOE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) ERB AT (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRETLAMBARNTBHESR
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are Ko T FRE AARGHEM A B M AT
disclosed before any inter-company eliminations: RE &
2019
—E-hF
Century Rich Jackston  Queenston Kingston New Century
Investments Maritime Maritime Maritime Maritime
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEx TER TER TER

Revenue and other income LONSES N 3,587 4,074 29,516 45,421 4,032
Total expenses gk (3,866) (6,932) (4,834) (12,599) (3,344)
Profit/(loss) for the year rEERF/ (B8) (279) (2,858) 24,682 32,822 688
Total comprehensive income/ KEEREKE/

(loss) for the year (BR)ag (279) (2,858) 25,828 40,252 688
Current assets MEAE 186,765 - 6,296 7 347,976
Non-current assets FRBEE - - 30,420 202,800 78
Current liabilities VEERES (149,507) - (6279)  (155,487)  (335817)

Net cash flows from/(used in) kE/ (AR E2E8

operating activities LREREFE (59,645) 17,433 28,851 46,159 173,614
Net cash flows from an REREEH

investing activity LREREFR = = = = 17,160
Net cash flows used in ARBEES

financing activities ZHEEREFE (697) (17,940) (29,900) (47,840)  (200,000)
Net decrease in cash and cash RekReEEY

equivalents ZEDRE (60,342) (507) (1,049) (1,681) (9,226)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019

—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations

(continued):

2018
—E-N\F

Revenue and other income

Total expenses

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Net cash flows from

operating activities

Net cash flows used in an

investing activity

Net cash flows from/(used in)

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents

Annual Report 2019 F&

WARE A

X 88

REFET

AEE2ENE
ag

RYEE
FRBEE
RBRE

REREEY
ZRERERE

ARREREY
ZEEREFE

xe/ (AR BEED

ZRERERE

ReRAEEEY
ZEm/ (BD) FE

FHELEEEEERLA

3. AREAFERESZNHOE

BB R (&)

TRETLAMBARMNPBHMESR
Kt o BT ER & AR EHER 2 B fE 4 85 AT
MWEwE: (8)

Century Rich Jackston  Queenston Kingston  New Century
Investments Maritime Maritime Maritime Maritime
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
36,898 16,483 31,777 58,132 2,994
(1,468) (3,467) (7,382) (14,205) @)
35,430 13,016 24,395 43,927 2,987
35,430 13,016 24,395 32916 2,987
283,451 10,823 7,354 5,568 459,457

- 14,040 34,320 214,500 156
(245,914) (2,978) (7.104)  (165038)  (438,732)
160,747 5011 20,436 40,903 31,259

= = = (23,303) =

26,677 (5009)  (20435)  (17,606) 190
187,424 2 1 (6) 31,449
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. REFE S 2EMT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RREMR SEcRTACERASE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period mr

are as follows:

2019
—E-hEF
Financial assets

THEE

Financial asset

Financial assets at Financial at fair value
fair value through assets at through other
profit or loss - amortised  comprehensive
held for trading cost income Total
RAYEE
st AR DB#ERE  RATEETA
EHEE- irEM Hit2EKE
BEEE THEE NEREE By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR
Equity investment designated 15 BIRLFEEFA
at fair value through other Lkl et
comprehensive income RERE - - 1,552 1,552
Trade receivables EWEFER - 58,290 - 58,290
Deposits and other receivables &4 R E 1 BUER 3
(note 16) (W316) - 2,047 - 2,047
Equity investments at fair value R A FEEF A
through profit or loss BRORERE 27,984 - - 27,984
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEN - 855,173 - 855,173
27,984 915,510 1,552 945,046
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31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2T A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEPRR SEERIAZERESHE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period R (&)

are as follows: (continued)

2019
ZE-NF
Financial liabilities
cHAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised costs
DL 8 R A
STEM
cREes
HK$'000
THERT
Accruals JEET3RIA 1,976
Other payables and deposits received HMEMERERRDWRSE
(note 19) (BF3E19) 20,443
Loan advanced from a non-controlling NEBME QR 2 TR
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary | ZER 131,823
Amount due to a related company J& 1~ B Bk 2 R RIE 4
154,246
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2RI A (B)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBREPRR SEERIAZERESHE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period R (8)

are as follows: (continued)

2018
—ZT-N\F
Financial assets
TRLEE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables asset Total
BOVEE
STARRN
PHEE- AR AHHE
REEE R R TREE B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TR TR TR
Available-for-sale investment AT EEHE 2R E - - 780 780
Trade receivables EWE 5 & - 32,829 - 32,829
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ @M T A 107 - - 107
Deposits and other receivables  $24 J% E H FE U B 3%
(note 16) (M3x1e) - 7,686 - 7,686
Equity investments at fair value 2 A FEBEFTA
through profit or loss BEmRERE 139,154 - - 139,154
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEELEEY - 793,767 - 793,767
139,261 834,282 780 974,323
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019

—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2018
—FE-N\F
Financial liabilities

TRER

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Accruals

Other payables and deposits

received (note 19)

Loan advanced from a

non-controlling shareholder of

the Group's subsidiary

Amount due to a related company

Annual Report 2019 F&

MTEEBIA

AERITR
HipfEm

fE&H IR

Hin AR R
Btz e (MEE19)

AEENBARZ
FEBBRR
BN ZER

FE 5 BA B 1A R SRR

FHELEEEEERLA

4. REHE sz I A (E)

RBERR SEEMIAZKEESHE

mr (&)

Financial liabilities at

fair value through Financial
profit or loss - liabilities at

held for trading amortised cost Total

RAVEE

AAABREH 8 1%
cRak- ATEH

BHIEEE tREE ek

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TER TAL

3,291 - 3,291

- 23,437 23,437

- 1,681 1,681

= 25,759 25,759

= 171,823 171,823

= 9 9

3,291 222,709 226,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2MITEAN LA FELEERLATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BHER
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's KREEEeHEAFEESBREOEIN
financial instruments, other than those with carrying AEBeRMTENERSELAFEE
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are mr
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
RESE NFEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-AE —T-N\F ZB-NE _—T-)NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TExT TERT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments at fair value 22 FEEHA
through profit or loss BRAKRERE 27,984 139,154 27,984 139,154
Derivative financial instruments T4 &R TE - 107 - 107
Equity investment designated EEARBRAFEEFA
at fair value through other HoAth 2 T ez 1Y
comprehensive income MR E 1,552 - 1,552 -
29,536 139,261 29,536 139,261
Financial liabilities tREE
Derivative financial instruments T4 €8 T A - 3,291 = 3,291

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, an amount due to a related company, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, a loan advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary
and the non-current deposits received approximate to
their carrying amounts and accordingly no disclosure of

the fair values of these items is presented.

EEECDENE RELREFEY
EWE SRR  BRERMNKE ZE
REMEKRERNEREE BREHR
N RARERTFRIBEN SR EE &
TR AR FKIA - fF B RIT REAE
A ANEENBAFZ R R
ZEFANRGERBEKIZE WA FEE
A EEEKREASERE R AL &S
BEZEHEENAFEERE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2R TENLATEBERAEE

208

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the Group’s management analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the Group’s management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of equity option
accumulator and decumulator contracts are measured
using a valuation technique based on assumptions that
are supported by observable market prices or rates. The
fair value of the unlisted equity investment designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income, which
was previously classified as available-for-sale equity
investment, has been estimated using a market-based
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and calculate an appropriate price
multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation ("EV/
EBITDA") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the
enterprise value of the comparable company by an
earnings measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as liquidity and size
differences between the comparable companies based
on company-specific facts and circumstances. The
discount multiple is applied to the corresponding
earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2019 F&

EERX ()

AEEEEERAETSRMIARTE
BB BRREF - REREAH -
AEEEBEEHMEMTAMBEL S
B EEEENMALEEHAE - B
ERGEMNEEBEL G2 RMGME - (4
BERAEEEREHMARIE - EEB
BRERESFMANTER2FHB

BEREBRZRESTW -

CREENBENAFEEREEER
REFZENENRSTRIMTANS
B AEREAFBEREE - THTTER
RRTIBIAMET A F(EE :

EHERBERENAFEEATSHRES
HEit -RERBERBLRERAHES
MR TFEERBEREABREMSE
R R FHOREBNEERME
BERBRAFEESALMEZEKED
ELEmAERE (RTa 085 A #HiH
EZBRBRRE)NAFEERAERL
BEABRTSERILLEIHNHRKR
B AT 5 R ER M A ERMTEE - HE
EREFREBITE AR AR RRE
REALABRAB (AEE) LS
BRI ABAESBENERSE
8l XEEHRAE BB
EN#EMEN((EXEEHRME
MIE - FTEREHENEN]) B8 - &%E
FRA L AR EEERA—ERN
Ket&E - RARREAREBNEERE
S EEALLL AR ZERE MR ERE
MERERREXZHEBEIELITZE I
EEHEEANIFELTRBIRENER
BAMATEQAFER EFHE HE
RMELANGBHAAFEER(ESLHER
REMBIRERA) REBEAFEEE
P(HetHEREMEzEYRERN) BE
B -MEARBREHRREE ZEE-



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to

the valuation of financial instruments together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2019:

Valuation
technique
fhE R
Unlisted equity Valuation
investments multiples
FLrmEERE 5 (& BUE

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the

Group that market participants would take into account

when pricing the investments.

Significant
unobservable input

EATABRBAE

Median of EV/EBITDA
multiple of peers
REECXEEYR
ME - BIEFE
REHATES

0 7 iz 2

Discount for lack of
marketability

mZ s nEt
iRl

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

5. eMIANAFEERATE
BEERX (&)
IWTAR-E—hEF=A=+—B%EH#
SRMITAGENEATIEREE AGE
EUREERBRESN :

Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
gE ATEEHBRAENSRE
2019: 5% increase/decrease in multiple would
0.481t07.73  result in increase/decrease in fair value
—T-NEF: by HK$60,000
048%773 BELT/ THRNEEHATEE
L7t/ TH60,000/ 7T
2019: 5% increase/decrease in discount would
30% result in decrease/ increase in fair
—E-NE value by HK$113,000
30% MR/ TR EHATER
T8,/ EF113,000% T

RE TS RB M T A R E T
BoREERR AT ENEEENKE
RATEEE -
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31 March 2019

—ET-hhE=RA=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2R TENLATEBERAEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

BRFEEFSENEE -

Fair value measurement using

NV EEERA

EHER (&)

[NFEEERX
TEETAKESBRTANAFEE
BER

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ER BAW BART
THRE BERAE - E3 DN
(5-BR) (B=EX) (B=BRX) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR FHET FET
As at 31 March 2019 R=B-NF=A=1-H
Equity investments at fair value & A FEE:TA
through profit or loss BRmBERE 27,984 - - 27,984
Equity investment designated BT AKRATEETA
at fair value through other Hit 2 EREH
comprehensive income BERE - - 1,552 1,552
27,984 - 1,552 29,536
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE-\F=A=1—H
Equity investments at fair value & AFBEA
through profit or loss BRnBERE 139,154 = = 139,154
Derivative financial instruments ~ fTA& BT A - 107 - 107
139,154 107 - 139,261
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

(continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2018

Derivative financial instruments

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

EER (&)
DNFEERERX(E)

5. c@MIEAENAFEERAFEE

TRETASECRIANAFEERT

BER: (B)

BAFEEFSENEE -

Fair value measurement using

ATEEERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

R EyNCl EV |

mERE BERAAE BEHAE
(E-BR) (BZEBR) (FZER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT THT TR

R-_E-N\F=A=t—H

MEERIA - 3,291 - 3,291
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31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

Equity investment at fair value through &2 A FEEx A
H

other comprehensive Income/ L fh, 2 TH W 2 B PR
available-for-sale investment — AEE R E -
unlisted: JE LT :

At 1 April REA—HA

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RARBMBG®RELER

FORMTE

At 1 April (restated) RMA—H (EEF)

Total fair value losses recognised in £ E 2 T U s MR
other comprehensive income AT EEEERRE

At 31 March W=A=+—H

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

21 2 Annual Report 2019 3§

EMITENAFEERATE
EER (&)

AP EEEBX(E)

RAFER E=ERAATFEENE
BB T

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET

we/

780 780

1,225 -

2,005 780

(453) -

1,552 780

RAFERN cREELRSBREESH
BEE-—EBRRE_EBRZEERRT
BEE-EXBEALELAFEERNE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and cash and
short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and other payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

In the prior year, the Group's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates related primarily to the
Group's long-term debt obligations with floating interest

rates.

The Group did not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitored interest rate
exposure and would consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits (through the impact on floating rate

borrowings).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

6. ¥HEREEEBERER

AEBZIEEMIABRERABRITR
HiER  ARREREREFR - 1tF
ERMTAZIERNNIAREEEES
& $‘§4ﬁ_x$§ﬁﬁﬂ$%ﬂi§§&i§
B plumEKE RN E A FE A BR
R MES ETQ%EI**@EFFE

=5

K’iliwﬁIEF$ZIEH 2 A ) R

2 NERR  EERR  RBED
BRBEEERRR EESEHILH
%ﬁ PR EFRB R CBBMMT -

JES1
REFEER  REBAT 2 HIGHRF
FREREEFZEANTEBIZZBF R E
2 REABEBEAE -

7 8 B3 4 9t P KO B o 47
M EREEeRDERFRAE

B o A
2 A
T BEE E YR EAFEAR

\
’BQ

TRETHMERRBTE  HHET
BHBAREBZERT  AEEBRH
o FIRAR Bl (EDE B I % 42 3 4
REE) B BB -
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31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

R E b (&)

Increase/
(decrease)

in basis points

2018 —E-N\F
Singapore dollar a3 T
Singapore dollar N T

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These

exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating

units in currencies other than the units’ functional

currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were

denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedging policy. However, management closely monitors

foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
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36. W EREERHERBE (&)

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

after tax and
retained profits
B 5 15 0% A

N AR B A
g,/ Cid)
HK$'000
TETT

(30)
30

S L B

AEEEHRHEERER - ZFRART)

RAREEEMAELL

RREENIINZE

BETEEMES - AERBE 2 K& H K
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7 o NEE B AT EmIME S P BE - A
- EREeTYERIINERR - WK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. i EMSEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) S EE /L B (48)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TERERRBEHREMEBRFDT
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible & T ANR T IE KA BE KR A IR IR ED
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all ZERT NEBRBRBRE RN NMRE R
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit after MEEBEERBEATEELR#
tax and retained profits (due to changes in the fair value ) RSN BRE -

of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax and
currency rate retained profits
BRB %% A
SNEEE =R KRB &R
®h, OR2) 2, OR4)
% HK$'000
FHET
2019 —EB-NF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fid 7 T3,
against the Singapore dollar # AN TRz (8 10 2,209
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fied 78 7T %,
against the Singapore dollar N T A E (10) (2,209)
2018 —E-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fied % T K,
against the Singapore dollar N TRz (A 10 Siere
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fisl 78 T H
against the Singapore dollar ¥ T HE (10) (19,943)
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31 March 2019
—ET-hhE=RA=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. i EMESEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk &R

The Group provides services only to recognised and AREFLDAZAMEEEE=FE
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is the BB TIRERE c AEECBERFE
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on REEHRETEBECMARRPY AR
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. ERERERF - Ut BURIRRE T
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an EREERRE  MAREZRERR
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is LTEA -

not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at RZIBE-NF=ZHA=1—HH=®

31 March 2019 J2 2 LA R R4 KB i [ R 0 AR

The table below shows the credit quality and the TRERNR _ZE-NF=A=+—HR
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's BASBENEERRBETNERAEER
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due EREERR AEXBNAREHR/E

B RFEMERBEANE IS EZONX
ARG NS - BItERIGR) - AR
REREOERDHE -

information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March 2019

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
@A EH
FREX EEFENREGERARA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-ER FoBER EZRE f{L 7 % Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET TAT TAT TAT

Trade receivables JEY R 5 R = - - 58,290 58,290
Financial assets included in BEERMATUE K
prepayments, deposits and R E At PR BR R
other receivables — Normal* NeREE—ER 2,047 = = = 2,047
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEREY
~ Not yet past due - KB H 855,173 - - - 855,173
857,220 - - 58290 915510
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at

31 March 2019 (continued)

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Group which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale investment and other
receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

36. MEREMEEBEREE (&)

EERERE (&)
R-EFE—NF=ZA=+—HHRES
B B LA R RF K B 1 B R 75 8 (48
*  AEEEMNRE- e REMERR
By eREECHAABET EER
XPECMEENEERRANBRER
BERBEZ LA HEBEE2EEM
AIER] -FR ¢MEENERY
EEWRAIFR] -

R—EFE— N F=ZH=1+—HHES
JE %

REAEEEMEREE (BERER
BeSEY JHEEZREREME
WEEF) MEAZEERRMS - A&
BrEzERRRETROMES &5
RBEENZETAZEESHE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

218

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018
(continued)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There is no significant credit risk as the tenants
have paid security deposits as collateral to the Group for
the lease of cruise ships and investment properties,

respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 to the

financial statements.

6. Y EREREEREREXK (#)

EER (&)
RZEFE-—NF=ZA=+—HH&E
g ()
EEERRBIDEER RHHF &
iR RITERBIETER - AP

DRAEREEBRRREVERNRER
IRHRBSEAEIFR  HASRELTE
EXEERR -

AEER A EWRE SRR & H b eI ER
RZEERR 2 FMEUE R ER 53R
KHFE15%16 °

Liquidity risk MREE S EBE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEENBRASHE TAEREES
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the RRER - ZIEZETRIARTRE
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BE P EWE SR M E 8 E H

assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows

from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

36. U EREERHERBEE (&)

RBEEREE (%)
RIBEETHORITHRER

AT ESIAR

ERmEHRzERAEIHA

2019
“B-hF
3to
On Lessthan less than 1to5 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
=R
EZEX N EOR
®E =fA +=@A -EEF BBIfF hgm
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT THR THRT THT TERT TERT
Loan advanced from a REEMBERRL
non-controlling shareholder FBRBEE
of the Group's subsidiary 2R 2 ER 131,823 - - - - 131,823
Accruals AT B - 1,976 - - - 1,976
Other payables and deposits Hitn T BR R %
received BlEE 326 7,086 9,693 3,338 - 20443
Amount due to a related company & BIEE D 1A 4 - - - - 4
132,153 9,062 9,693 3,338 = 154,246
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

RBEEEE (%)
RIS ATHARFTRER

AT # A&

BRBEHRceMABERHNA - (B

2018
—E-N\F
3to
On  Llessthan  less than 1t05 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
=fEA
EEX 20 EOR
BE =A +TZ@A —-Z1Ff HBARLF g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL TEL TEL TET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t BB1TEH - 359 1,078 5,751 21,802 28,990
Interest-bearing other borrowing St BEMER 697 - - - - 697
Loan advanced from a REEMERAL
non-controlling shareholder EBRBER
of the Group's subsidiary B ER - - - 171,823 - 171,823
Accruals Bt ZIE - 1,681 - - - 1,681
Other payables and H i AR R
deposits received BlEe 220 20,935 605 3,999 - 25,759
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA - 1,071 2,220 = = 3,291
Amount due to a related company  FE{T B EE A AR 9 - - - - 9
926 24,046 3,903 181,573 21,802 232,250
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 17)
as at 31 March 2019. The Group's listed investments are
listed on the stock exchanges of Hong Kong and
Singapore and are valued at quoted market prices at the

end of the reporting period.

The equity market indices for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and

their respective highest and lowest points during the year

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

36. MEREMEEBEREE (&)

iR B A% L B

P 4 B 48 B\ i 52 4 RO 5 BROK 7 R M
ESEEESMERNESESF R FE
BETHENER R-_FT—-ALF=H
=+—H - AEEFMEEOBREERR
BRREDBERRAFEEFARIZNOR
BEEMNMEHBJLTRZERSE
(M aE17) - AEEH ETHRERER
BB NI ERL B LT -
WRHERRIZPAHHEE -

RBERARNRARZHEERHER
B TIRBARRSAONBREMNSEH
NERAFEREE BN &S L &EEH
w

were as follows:

31 March High/low 31 March High/low

2019 2019 2018 2018

—E-hf 5/ —T-)\F ®/&

=R=+—H ZE-hE =A=1—H —E-N\F

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index ~ &B—B4#EH 29,051 31,593/ 30,093 33,484/
24,541 23,724

Singapore — Straits Times Index ¥ I3 — /& BEBS R 15 & 3,213 3,642/ 3,428 3,612/
2,956 3,114
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36
POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant, based

on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

B RREERRERBER (&)

B A (B 4% L B (48
TREREMAEMEBRBETET
BERERENBERRIEESE -
HAEBREREZATBEESEE
10%#8) 2 UKE o

period.
Increase/
Carrying (decrease)
amount Increase/ in profit
of equity (decrease) after tax and
investments in fair value  retained profits
BRBE & 3 A
BRERE DFEE RREBEF
MERESHE #m/ ORd) #in,/ (B)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FTET TET
2019 —E-NF
Investments listed in: REEFWR :
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BB -—REEE 27,984 10 2,337
(10) (2,337)
2018 —E-N\F
Investments listed in: REEWR:
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading ~ &E—F{FEE 87,144 10 7,277
(10) (7,277)
Singapore — Held-for-trading MK -—REER 52,010 10 5,201
(10) (5,201)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R R M aE

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

36. MEREMEEBEREE (&)

EXEHE
AEEEAER T EZERBRABRALE
BARNEFBEELEEBZRAUEER
BFRREALEUAFEERIIRS
BEREE-

AEERBEEGEZECERERE
BAMNAE - REFRAEELRNS
B AKETHBHERRZIKE - AR
RIRMERF BT - AEBAZIN
MERZEMERNRERS - BE-F
—NAEZFE-NF=ZA=t+—HL*F
B BHEEEANBR BERERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. i EMESEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued) EXEE (&)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is AEENAEAEEBBELXRERE
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to K BREAEEELSBEBRALRRD
owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to AHAAEGERZ AEEZHEAG
maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Total BAREEFELREFEBS50% - BET
indebtedness represents interest-bearing bank and other RETBRITREMETARKNEE M E
borrowings and a loan advanced from a non-controlling RAIZIFERBERERMN 2 ER - RIS
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary. The gearing ratios MRCEREEGFELENT

as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

2019 2018
—2-a% —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Interest-bearing bank and FFEIRITR
other borrowings H i & 5K - 23,437
Loan advanced from a AEEWNBRARZ
non-controlling shareholder FEFERR AR R
of the Group's subsidiary B2 ER 131,823 171,823
131,823 195,260
Equity attributable to owners RAGHER A
of the Company G #E & 1,653,099 1,636,670
Gearing ratio BAREGELE 8% 12%
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EEBAERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investment
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

FRBEE

ME - BERRE
RMBRRZRE
AHIEEZRE

BERRAFERA

H 2 HE Y
g g

FEMEE E AR

REBEE
FEW B 5 BR 3K
PTEemIA
BARE Rk
H i 8 U5 AR X
BRFEETA
BERERE
RekBeEED

mBEEREE

B4 F5 3R R P 5E
31 March 2019

—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

37. A2 B B B RS AR &

BRAARAR®EHROT BRI KE

ERMT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
235 287
546,675 550,389
= 780
1,552 —
548,462 551,456
30,259 14,848
= 53
2,513 1,610
16,929 73,769
647,972 494,748
697,673 585,028
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R EE
31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments

Due to subsidiaries
Accruals

Due to a related company

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

Annual Report 2019 F&

REBAE
TEEMT A

JE 1~ PR /B8 1% R SK IR
et IR

JE 1~ R Bk 2 B IR

mBBRERRE

Rl

BEFHE

i

B BT
fat 85 (BT 5E)

e
Bk
o
&)
S

FHELEEEEERLA

37. X XA FHAMRR R (&)

2019 2018
—2-nE —2-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FET
- 1,646
484,071 363,320
1,883 1,732

4 _
485,958 366,698
211,715 218,330
760,177 769,786
14,451 14,451
745,726 755,335
760,177 769,786
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COMPANY (continued)

Note:

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At 1 April 2017

Total comprehensive

income for the year

At 31 March 2018 and
at 1 April 2018

Adjustment on initial
application of HKFRS 9

At 31 March 2018 and
at 1 April 2018
(Restated)

Total comprehensive

losses for the year

At 31 March 2019

RZT-N\F=A
=+-BRR
—Z-\FWA—H

BERERBANBRE
ERIFEORRHEL R

RZZE-N\E=A
=+-ARR
—Z-\FMA—-R
(&5

AEEEA
FReR

RZE-NEF=A
=R F

FHLEEFTEERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2019
—E-hEFE=A=1+—H

37. X R AN FHAMRRFR (&)

i3
ARARBHBHENAT
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Fair value Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
R 17 BRE AYVEE
18 iR 54 BE4ES 5 REER CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER THER THER THER THER
354,993 23,015 162,587 - 173,219 713,814
- - - - 41,521 41,521
354,993 23,015 162,587 - 214,740 755,335
- - - 1,225 - 1,225
354,993 23,015 162,587 1,225 214,740 756,560
= = = (453)  (10381) (10,834
354,993 23,015 162,587 772 204,359 745,726

227
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2019
—ET-hEFE=A=+—H

37.

38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 25(i), representing the
excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares issued
under the Group's reorganisation and the then consolidated
net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the
capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders
in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 June 2019, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement (the “Agreement”) with three connected
persons of the Company to acquire in aggregate of 60%
equity interest in ETC Finance Limited, which is a licensed
money lender in Hong Kong, at an initial consideration
(subject to adjustment) of HK$457,640,000. The Group
acquires 60% of ETC Finance Limited for potential capital
appreciation opportunity and recurring cash inflow to the
Group. An initial refundable deposit of HK$30,000,000
was paid by the Group upon signing of the Agreement
and there was no financial impact to the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The transaction has not
been completed up to the date of these financial

statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2019.
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P53

(i) BBE-NAANFRAZRETZRA
BT ARMDGEERTEL

RIEARECBIFRRE) (KER) &
ZOEDIESMEFTMZ BETBRT  AARZ
BEREGA DR TRE -

BREREEFECRL AFTEZBRE
ZAFEE BRI ®RE N FE2.40
MRERNONRZ G RRE—SFTHEE-Z
ERBRERTER  FUFRREBES
Betn s (BRR - Sl B RIS B B o2 Uk
B RERSBERERE AN -

REHREE
RZZT—NAFEARNA+TNA AEEHEAK
PNAIZFBEEANT LB KT
(IZHBzE)) NKESZERMEER
NAElE He0wR ANER T RER
457,640,000% 7T (F] TAE) - HIEX
MBBERATABSNFEBEA - K
EEWE SR E AR A FHI600%K
FERDRBRABLEETNEEREUR
BAEETRBER A - AKEE
REBZBZEHINEETREES
30,000,000/ 7T - REZ-ZE—NF=
A=+—RLtFER EEAEETE
EEERATE BEMWBREXABA
I BARSEKRTHK °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FURHBHME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- ANEBEBERBEBMBEESEAD H ALK
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BZMBEHRRMNLEEEE E= BEME
years, as extracted from the published audited financial TIRERNBELT o

statements, is set out below.

RESULTS ¥iE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-BHLHFE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-N\F ZT—+F ZZ—RF —T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET FET TET FET

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING  HELEEK

OPERATIONS EEHBA 99,754 202,055 182,616 32,247 147,911
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE rEERERE

YEAR FROM CONTINUING EBEEMN

OPERATIONS wH (BR) 40,911 196,512 105,367 (22,442) 95,897
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE rEE-—1

YEAR FROM A BRIEEE

DISCONTINUED EREEN

OPERATION wA (BE) - - - - 16,944
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE ARTEEBA

YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EEREE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY wH (BR) 18,889 148,611 76,482 (32,376) 98,830
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFPRBHHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- NEBEBERBEMKREEESEAE F K
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BZMBEHRRMNLCEEE = BEMIE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial ZEREZOBEU0T - (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BELIFEERES
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

—B-NEF —T-)/\F ZF-tF ZT-RF ZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TRET TAT TRET

TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 1,877,814 1,935,125 1,733,983 1,673,833 1,695,271
TOTAL LIABILITIES BBEAE (173,844)  (230,556)  (241,715)  (246,044)  (225,771)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ Jr i R i % (50,871) (67,899) (17,775) (27,621) (13,703)

1,653,099 1,636,670 1,474,493 1,400,168 1,455,797
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),

Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
ERMREBEETRT- 1158
EORBESH T (8 —8) 23A5 &

Ground Floor including its cockloft,
Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BB SR A E3019%
EEEH T (BREABRE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENEEATIT T HIZHR
BT LB T 5%

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHLEEFTEERQA

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

REW=

Use

R&

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

GRS

Commercial

[CES

MEFIS
31 March 2019
—ET-NAF=A=+—H

Percentage
Nature of interest

X BB

Medium-term 100

leasehold

FHEE

Medium-term 100
leasehold

R E

Medium-term 100
leasehold

hHEEE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MEFIS
31 March 2019
—T-hFE=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

R

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BRNEEABIT T HA3HR
BT TESGH T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

Annual Report 2019 F&

FHELEEEEERLA

REWE (&)

Use Nature

k=S R
Commercial Medium-term
EES leasehold
FHIFE

Commercial Freehold
EE3 KA FERE

Percentage
of interest

BEBETH

100

100
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